Durham %k

County Council

Corporate Parenting Panel

Date Friday 21 June 2024
Time 9.30 am
Venue Committee Room 2, County Hall, Durham

a ~ W0 DN B

10

11

Business

Part A
Items which are open to the public and press

Apologies for Absence

Substitute Members

Minutes of the meeting held on 17 May 2024 (Pages 3 - 8)
Declarations of Interest

Number of Children in Our Care and Care Leavers
- Verbal update from Head of Early Help, Inclusion and Vulnerable
Children

Ofsted Updates
- Verbal update from Head of Early Help, Inclusion and Vulnerable
Children

Proud Moments
- Verbal update from Strategic Managers

Care Leavers Service: My Plan, My Future
- Report of Head of Children's Social Care (Pages 9 - 16)

Children in Care Annual Survey 2024
- Report of Head of Children's Social Care (Pages 17 - 36)

Care Leavers Service Custody Project
- Report of Head of Children's Social Care (Pages 37 - 48)

Performance Report
- Report of Corporate Equality and Strategy Manager (Pages 49 - 66)



12 Corporate Parenting Panel Annual Report 2023-24
- Joint Report of Head of Children's Social Care and Head of Early
Help, Inclusion and Vulnerable Children (Pages 67 - 132)

13 Adopt Coast to Coast
- Report of Head of Service, Adopt Coast to Coast (Pages 133 - 156)

14 Such other business as, in the opinion of the Chair of the meeting, is of
sufficient urgency to warrant consideration.

15 Any resolution relating to the exclusion of the public during the
discussion of items containing exempt information.

Part B
Items during which it is considered the meeting will not be open to the
public (consideration of exempt or confidential information)

16 Regulation 44 Visits, Durham County Council Homes
- Presentation of Strategic Manager (Pages 157 - 158)

17 Such other business as, in the opinion of the Chair of the meeting, is of
sufficient urgency to warrant consideration.

Helen Bradley
Director of Legal and Democratic Services

County Hall
Durham
13 June 2024

To: The Members of the Corporate Parenting Panel:

Councillor M Simmons (Chair)
Councillor M Walton (Vice-Chair)

Councillors R Adcock-Forster, C Bell, S Deinali, J Griffiths, T Henderson,

C Hunt, B Kellett, L Mavin, D Oliver, S Quinn, A Reed, K Robson, K Rooney,
A Savory, P Sexton, S Townsend, C Varty and M Wilson

Co-opted Members:

J Bell, C Brown, J McCarthy, E Reed, W Taylor, F Tweddle, R Woods and
Children in Care Council representatives

Contact:  Jill Hogg Tel: 03000 269 711




Agenda Item 3

DURHAM COUNTY COUNCIL
Corporate Parenting Panel

At a meeting of the Corporate Parenting Panel held in Committee Room 2,
County Hall, Durham on Friday 17 May 2024 at 9.30 am

Present:
Councillor M Walton (Chair)

Members of the Panel:
Councillors R Adcock-Forster, S Deinali, J Griffiths, C Hunt, B Kellett, S Quinn,
K Robson, K Rooney and C Varty

Co-opted Members:
J Bell, Mason, E Reed and W Taylor

Also Present:

Rachel Farnham — Head of Children’s Social Care
Anne Haigh — Aycliffe Secure Services Centre Manager
Paula Jemson — Strategic Manager, Looked After and Permanence
Rob Johnson — Project Manager, Investing in Children
Hollie Meadows — Senior Practitioner

Lee Peacock — Participation and Engagement Officer
Paul Rudd — Strategic Manager, Children’s Homes
Melanie Stubbs — Head of the Virtual School

Jac Tyler — Strategic Manager

Sharon Walker - Lawyer, Children, Adults and Health
Jayne Watson — Senior Partnerships Officer

1 Apologies for Absence
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Charlton, Henderson,
Savory and Simmons, from co-opted members Billie-Leigh and Luke and
from officer Martyn Stenton.

2 Substitute Members
Mason was in attendance as the Children in Care Council representative.

3 Minutes

The minutes of the meeting held on 19 April 2024 were agreed as a correct
record and signed by the Chair.

Page 3



Page 4

Declarations of interest
There were no declarations of interest.
Number of Children Looked After and Care Leavers

The Head of Children’s Social Care, Rachel Farnham, informed the Panel
that the number of children in our care had reduced from 1,211 in April to
1,206 in May. The figure included 78 unaccompanied asylum seeking young
people (UASC) of whom 32 were care leavers. The total number of care
leavers was 337 and there were 23 children placed for adoption.

Ofsted Updates
No Ofsted inspections had taken place during the period.

Proud Moments

The Head of Children’s Social Care welcomed Mason to the Corporate
Parenting Panel meeting. She informed the Committee that she had been
proud of the effort Mason made to attend her recent meeting with
representatives of the Children in Care Council and she thanked him for his
valuable contribution to the meeting.

The Head of the Virtual School, Melanie Stubbs, spoke of her attendance at
a recent Children in Care Council meeting which took place just before
GCSE exams were about to start. At the meeting, the young person
discussed how exam anxiety was triggering negative feelings about events in
their past. Unfortunately, the following week, the young person was given a
two day suspension. Upon arrival at the Inclusion Unit, the young person told
staff that they felt they had let Melanie down. The member of staff at the
Inclusion Unit reassured the young person that was not the case. A Teams
call was arranged between the Head of the Virtual School and the young
person, at which the Head of the Virtual School and the young person
discussed the situation and they agreed a way forward which included a
phone call with the Head of the Virtual school after each exam, to talk about
how the exam had gone. The Head of the Virtual School spoke of how proud
and encouraged she was that they were both invested in getting the best
outcomes for the young person. The Chair requested the Head of the Virtual
School to ask if the young person would agree to share their progress with
the Panel, after their exams.

Members also shared some of their proud moments. Councillor Varty
commended the practitioners involved in the Fostering Panel for all their hard
work during an extremely busy period.



Councillor Hunt paid tribute to a social worker who had shown great
compassion and care in a matter that she had been involved in. The Head of
Children’s Social Care agreed to ensure the comments were fedback to the
relevant officers.

The Head of the Virtual School confirmed that ‘Good Luck’ cards had been
sent to pupils taking their SATs and GCSE exams.

Children in Care Council Update

The Project Manager for Investing in Children and Mason, representing
young people of the Children in Care Council (CiCC), delivered a
presentation on activity during the month (for copy of report and presentation
see file of minutes).

The presentation followed the exercise undertaken at the April Corporate
Panel meeting at which the Panel discussed their interpretation of the words
in the title of the government’s strategy for the reform of Children’s Social
Care ‘Stable Homes Built on Love.” At the meeting, the Panel requested that
the same exercise be carried out by the Children in Care Council to identify
whether the young people’s interpretations of the words differed to those of
the Panel.

Mason described how the older CiCC group compiled a list of how they
interpreted the words which were included in the report and he highlighted
some of the words that particularly resonated with him. Mason explained that
one of the main themes the young people felt was important was the element
of respect in relationships and they recognised that mutual respect was
essential for good relationships.

Referring to home, Mason spoke of how the young people felt that home
should always be a place where a young person can go back to and be
supported, in any situation. When the young people discussed safety, they
differentiated between feelings of physical and emotional safety and also
how worry and stress can impact emotions. The young people also related
feeling safe to being surrounded by people who care and who are there for
the young person throughout good times and bad. That led the young people
to discuss the importance of positive role models and mentors.

In terms of stability the young people felt that being kept informed played a
role in feelings of stability and, regardless of whether circumstances were
good or bad, the young people felt that being kept informed was important.
Mason also highlighted having routines and being occupied were also factors
in stability.

Page 5



Page 6

The Project Manager for Investing in Children then presented themes
identified by the older CiCC group for further discussion at a future joint
CiCC/CPP meeting. The themes were emotional and physical wellbeing,
feeling safe, positive people in life and being listened to.

The Chair commented that the observations of the young people, in the
main, mirrored those of the Panel, however, the young people discussed
feelings of emotional safety as well as physical safety, whereas the Panel’'s
discussion focused on physical safety.

Councillor Hunt commented that the use of clear and understandable
language applied to both young people and adults and she highlighted that
many adults were not familiar with urban slang terms used by young people.

Pre-Birth Intervention Update

The Panel considered the Pre-Birth Intervention Update, presented by Jac
Tyler, Strategic Manager (for copy of report see file of minutes).

The Strategic Manager informed the Panel that the Pre-birth Intervention
Service (PBIS) was established to enable babies to remain with their parents
or with the birth family when safe to do so. When that was not possible, the
aim was to permanently place the baby with alternative carers, as soon as
possible after birth.

The Panel noted the criteria for eligibility for the service, and that for a
referral to be accepted into the team, the referral must be made prior to 21
weeks gestation. The Strategic Manager provided details of the work
undertaken over the past year, with a total of 96 unborn children supported
and she explained how new pathways had been developed for assessments
to be tailored to the needs of the individual family, including young parents;
those families who had previously experienced care proceedings and for
parents with learning needs.

The Strategic Manager described case studies which illustrated how the
PBIS linked with other areas of children’s services and the commitment and
dedication of the practitioners involved.

Councillor Walton asked whether families engaged freely with the service
and the Strategic Manager clarified that meaningful consent was required to
be provided by parents. She described how the support was intensive and
those families who committed to the service engaged well.

Resolved:

That the report be noted.



10

11

Future Hope

The Panel received a report on the Future Hope service, formerly known as
Pause Durham, presented by Jac Tyler, Strategic Manager (for copy of
report see file of minutes).

The Strategic Manager explained that Pause Durham was rebranded in 2024
and with the help of women involved in the service, it was given a new name,
Future Hope. The Future Hope service aimed to reduce the number of
women who had previously had one or more children permanently removed
from their care. In total, the service had worked with 84 women, 45% of
whom were care experienced. The Panel noted there had been no further
sets of care proceedings or further children removed from the women who
had graduated from Future Hope.

The Strategic Manager informed the Panel that 24 women were currently
engaged with the service, ranging between the ages of 21 and 39 years and
57% of the women were care experienced. The Panel noted that areas of
need being addressed by the programme included domestic, alcohol and
substance abuse and mental health. Feedback from those having received
the service was overwhelmingly positive and outcome surveys showed
iImprovements to women'’s confidence and emotional and mental health,
which may not have been achieved were it not for the support of Future
Hope.

Concluding the presentation, the Strategic Manager presented a case study
and audio clips from women supported by the service who spoke of how the
support had made a positive difference to their lives.

Resolved:
That the report be noted.
Such other business

In response to a request from Councillor Simmons for more information on
the number of children in our care who were missing school on a regular
basis, the Head of the Virtual School informed the Panel that from
September 2023 to Easter 2024, the overall attendance for children looked
after in Durham was 90%.

Prior to the Covid-19 pandemic, attendance was approximately 97.2% and
the aim was to return to the pre-Covid-19 attendance levels. An Educational
Welfare Officer was now in post, with responsibility for young people with a
social worker and children looked after.

Page 7



12

13

Page 8

During the September to Easter terms, 52 children had attendance which
had fallen below 50%,103 of the 780 statutory school age children had 100%
attendance over the two terms and 300 children had attendance between
95% and 99%. The attendance target was 96% and children whose
attendance fell below 95% were supported to achieve attendance targets,
with the help of their schools and carers.

The Head of the Virtual School clarified that 18 young people were not
attending school as they were not on a school roll, 12 of whom were
unaccompanied asylum seeking young people. Some young people with an
Education Health and Care Plan were awaiting an identified special school
placement.

The Head of the Virtual School highlighted that analysis of the data indicated
positive attendance from reception to year 8 however attendance dipped
from year 9. This was to be the subject of deeper analysis to identify the
underlying reasons. A further cause for concern was that 52 children had
been removed from school for holidays and all Head Teachers had been
requested to identify such absences as unauthorised absences.

The Chair thanked the Head of the Virtual School for the information which
would be fedback to Councillor Simmons.

Exclusion of the public
Resolved:

That under Section 100(a)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public
be excluded from the meeting for the following item of business on the
grounds that it involved the likely discussion of exempt information as defined
in paragraph 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act.

Regulation 44 Visits Ayciffe Secure Centre Homes

The Panel received a summary of activity in relation to Regulation 44 visits to
Aycliffe Secure Centre and Maple House between January and March 2024,
presented by Anne Haigh, Aycliffe Secure Services Centre Manager. The
report also provided an overview of the first Ofsted inspection of Maple
House which was rated as outstanding in all areas (for copy of report and
presentation, see file of minutes).

It was agreed that an overview of educational outcomes for the young people
at Aycliffe Centre and Maple House would be provided within the next
Aycliffe update.

Resolved:

That the report be noted.



Agenda Item 8

Corporate Parenting Panel

21 June 2024

County Council g\glgr

Care Leavers Service: My Plan, My Future

Report of Rachel Farnham, Head of Children’s Social Care, Durham
County Council

Electoral division(s) affected:
None

Purpose of the Report

1 This report is to explain the My Plan, My Future direct working tool to
members pf the Corporate Parenting Panel and ask for agreement that
this is used as part of the pathway review process for Care Leavers.

Executive Summary

2 As part of the Regional Care Leavers Board work, a similar direct work
tool was shared by another Local Authority. The Care Leavers Service
in County Durham have adapted this to use within County Durham.

3 Young people from the Children in Care Council were consulted during
the initial preparation process and very much led how this tool would
look. They wanted scaling and tick boxes so that they had a quick way
to show their views.

4 The tool has been developed to fit well with the Care Leaver
Development Plan which seeks to ensure we understand and develop
networks for young people and ensure we support them to meet their

goals.

5 It covers the areas of the young person’s life we would want to review
with them.

6 It allows the review of the young person’s Pathway Plan to be led by

them and evidence of this direct work to be on the young person’s file.

7 The tool is available to use online or in a paper copy, whichever way the
young person chooses.

8 Young Person Advisor’s (YPA’s) have used this tool with young people
in their direct work sessions and the feedback from both YPA'’s and
young people has been positive.

Page 9



Recommendations
9 Corporate Parenting Panel are asked to:

(a) consider this direct working tool developed alongside young
people; and

(b)  agree that this tool can be used for pathway plan reviews for
young people who have left care.

Page 10



Background
10  As part of the Regional Care Leavers Board a version of this tool is
used by another local authority and was shared as good practice.

11  Since September 2023, the Care Leavers Service in Durham has
developed this tool with young people and the support of our
communications team.

12  The tool has been used by a limited number of YPA’s with young people
in order for us to gain feedback.

Main implications

13  We are able to ensure that young people give their views in a way that
they feel suits them and that this is easy to do and to understand.

14  The young person can fully review their own plans and set their own
goals and there is evidence of this on their file.

Conclusion

15  The My Plan, My Future Direct Working Tool has been developed
alongside young people and is proving to be an effective tool in
ensuring their voice is heard and they lead their own Pathway Planning.

Author
Lesley Baldry Tel: 07717541944

Page 11



Appendix 1: Implications

Legal Implications
There are no legal implications.

Finance
The only financial implication is the printing cost of the leaflets.

Consultation

Children have developed this and been consulted throughout to ensure they
are happy with the finished product and are comfortable with using the tool.

Equality and Diversity / Public Sector Equality Duty

The tool can easily be used by most young people and will be translated for
young people where English is not their first language.

Climate Change

The impact on climate change would be the printing of the leaflets however an
online copy will be used whenever possible.

Human Rights

The Right to Life is supported by this tool as it allows us to understand how a
young person feels about their own life and set goals for the future.

Crime and Disorder

We know that supporting and understanding young people well can reduce
them being involved in criminal activity into adulthood.

Staffing
The tool will be used by the young person’s YPA alongside the young person.

Accommodation
No additional accommodation is required.

Risk
The tool will be used when the young person is emotionally able to do this.

Procurement
No implications.

Page 12



Appendix 2: My Plan My Future Leaflet (PROOF)

Separate document for information

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



What do | enjoy doing? Is there anything else | could do? Reaching my goals - am | there yet? :

‘ Please tick the number that describes how you feel with 0 being not achieving
any of your goals and 10 being achieving all your goals.

Jo OJ1 U2 (U3 & (U5 (Je (J7 (J8 (J9 (Jio

Not achieving goals Achieving goals

What support have we agreed today to help me

(J Going well ‘
(J Getting there
(J Not going well at all

Completed with

,‘ ®eeccesccc® — O

How is my physical and mental health? Do | need any support?

Date dd/mm/yyyy

v
o
o/
@)

Just hecause you are leaving care, or have already left care, we haven't
stopped caring about you. We want to make sure that you feel safe and
supported and know where and who to go to for advice and help.

Our local offer for care leavers tells you about all the
support that we have in County Durham for you.

[=]: 7 [m]

(3 Going well Visit www.durham.gov.uk/careleavers or scan * Durh am e
(O Getting there = County Council

QNO‘: going well at all o B O 55755 CYPS E
\ (o)

GT abed



http://www.durham.gov.uk/careleavers

7

My‘ network

Who supports me and what they do How is my education/training/employment going and
what are my plans

My Goals

My Worries

(3 Going well
(O Getting there

| I h I\

Things that are important to me

() Going well

My famil .
03 My fami y (3 Not going well at all [ Getting there
O Where live (3 Not going well at all
(J My pets
O My friends Do | feel safe
() Education/training What are the things that keep me safe?
(J Employment How are things where | live and what are my plans

m Are there any worries about my safety?

() Going well
() Getting there
() Not going well at all

(3 Going well
(O Getting there
(3 Not going well at all



Corporate Parenting Panel
21 June 2024

Children in Care Annual Survey 2024

Agenda Item 9

County Council ggla{r

Report of Rachel Farnham, Head of Children’s Social Care, Durham
County Council

Electoral division(s) affected:
Countywide

Purpose of the Report

1

This report is to inform Corporate Parenting Panel (CPP) of the findings
gathered from the annual feedback survey completed by children in our
care. Findings include what children think about the support they
receive, what they feel is working well and what they feel could be
further developed.

Executive summary

2

Listening and responding to the voice of the child/young person is at the
centre of how we practice in County Durham. Undertaking this survey
and hearing from as many children as possible about their experience of
the service is a key way in which children and young people can have
their voices heard and responded to. This feedback is essential to
ensure that we continue to develop the way we work with children, their
families and carers, to achieve the best outcomes.

This survey will be repeated annually and will provide us with assurance
of the quality of practice and service delivery, and evidence to continue
to drive further service improvement consistent with our Quality
Assurance Framework.

Recommendations

4

Corporate Parenting Panel are recommended to:
(@) Consider the content of this report.
(b)  Agree with its recommendations.

(c) Agree that the survey should be repeated annually.

Page 17



Background

5.

Durham Children’s Services is committed to an annual survey which is
shared with children in our care, to provide children and young people

with an opportunity to share their views and experiences of the support
they have received and for their feedback to be considered and shape

further service development.

The survey was created by the Service Manager for Children in Care
with the support of the Participation & Engagement Officer,
Safeguarding and Professional Practice. The survey was created as a
SNAP survey by the Consultations Team allowing for both easy access
and submission, as well as for the child/young person to be able to
complete the survey with their carer, independent of their worker.

Methodology

7.

The survey was completed during a 9-week window and launched to
coincide with Celebrating Practice Week (26 February 2024). This ran
for 9 weeks until the 30 April 2024.

The survey was either completed independently with a link being sent to
the child or their carer, or the child was supported by their worker to
complete the survey either in person or during a telephone
conversation.

Findings

9.

10.

Page 18

In total, 30 surveys were completed by our children. This number is low
considering that we currently work with a cohort of 691 children. The
survey was sent out to social workers and team managers with a
rationale for completing the work, and time given to complete this. This
survey was specifically designed to gather the views of all children
cared for by the children in care service.

The positives identified within the survey were:

e Children overwhelmingly felt they enjoyed positive relationships
with those who are important to them. 97% of respondents said
they get on well with the adults that they live with. 96% said they
had someone with whom they can talk about their worries.

o Children who responded also told us of the value they place in
their relationship with their worker. 93% of respondents said that
the worker does what they say they’re going to do. The same
number (93%) said that they felt involved in decisions about their



11

12

13

own lives. Importantly, 90% of the children who responded said
that their worker took the time to get to know them. 89%
responded to say that they found their worker friendly and easy to
talk to. 86% said that their worker helps them to understand
things.

e 89% of children who responded said they know where they could
get help if they needed to.

e 93% of children said they felt safe.
A key consideration from the findings was:

o 83% of children who responded said that their worker/s have
helped them understand why they couldn’t live with their family.

¢ 89% of respondents said that they were helped to see their family
and friends as often as they would like. However, two children
who responded to the latter question disagreed and said they did
not get help to see their family/friends.

e We know from our children and young people that having a clear
understanding, that develops as they mature, around why they
need to live separately to their parents is exceptionally important.

Other key learning points from the survey were:

e 74% of those who responded said that school was good. 4
children however said their experience was not good.

o 82% of respondents said their health and well-being was good,
but 2 children said it was not.

e Inrespect of involvement of the child in their plan, whilst 60% of
children reported that they found it easy to understand their care
plan, 4 children of those who responded said they found it
difficult.

There were views presented in the survey which we need to further
consider. For example, three children said they didn’t know the name of
their social worker. This contradicts earlier findings whereby 93% of
children told us that their worker does what they say they are going to
do. A review of the questions will consider how questions can provide
more clarity regarding children’s experiences. Two children out of 30
said that they didn’t feel happy about the service they had received. The
survey is anonymous and therefore it is difficult to determine the context
behind some of the views shared and given the anonymity it is not

Page 19



14

possible to respond on an individual basis to those children raising
concerns, for example, ensuring they know who their social worker is.

There is further learning to be applied around what we ask. For
example, 80% of the children who responded said that they had four or
more workers since coming into care. However, in retrospect, it would
have been useful to have built into the survey the period being referred
to so that we can more accurately understand the extent to which this is
a concern.

Conclusion

15

16

17

Page 20

Most children who completed the survey told us that they have positive
relationships with those that are important to them, that they value the
relationship with their social worker and that they know where they can
get help and that they feel safe. It is acknowledged that there have been
changes in the workforce and this impacts on children’s relationships
with professionals. We continue to support the workforce with the
investment in training. We are introducing tighter performance
measures that will support the social workers to spend more time with
the children.

There were some children who advised that they did not know the name
of their social worker which is a concern. This highlights the need for
social worker ‘About Me’ profiles to be rolled out across the Children in
Care teams to ensure that the children and young people have details of
their social worker and how to get in touch with them. Workforce stability
is a priority to ensure that meaningful relationships are built between
children and their social worker. Some children said they were not
happy with their education. This highlights the importance of children
and young people’s views being actively incorporated into their PEP
meetings so their views around education can be heard and responded
to. Some children also reported that they did not understand their care
plan. The Children in Care Service is continuing the journey of
improvement and is undertaking work around communication and care
planning to permanence. This will include a focus on education, training
and employment as well as care planning and building and maintaining
relationships.

We are committed to further developing this survey as an important part
of our quality assurance process. We will develop a consultation group
with children and young people to shape and develop questions for the
next annual survey for children in care. We also plan to create surveys
for parents and carers to gain additional learning and assurance about
our services. We want to ensure that we have explored the pertinent



areas that help support and develop practice for County Durham and
that produce good outcomes for children and young people.

Current Developments

18  There has been an investment in our Children in Care service “Clarity
and Confidence”. The aim is to develop expertise with regards to
permanence and care planning. These sessions are specifically
designed to empower practitioners to utilise the tools and to develop
confidence to support children during their journey through care. We will
continue to support practitioners to undertake meaningful visits with
their children to discuss their care planning and important matters such
as education, family time and life story work.

19  Additional management capacity has been created within the Children
in Care service, which will support the management team within the
service to increase management oversight on performance and quality
of practice.

Next Steps

20 In view of the low number of surveys returned into the CIC service, it is
proposed that there is a review of the processes and learning from this.
There will be a focus on the barriers that prevented children from
completing this task. A task and finish group is proposed within the
Children in Care service to develop a plan around this for future survey
returns. This will include a review of the questions, methods of
engagement and management oversight of the process. The aim will
be to ensure that all children in care have an opportunity to be heard.

21 The Children in Care service management team have created a Mission
Statement for the Children in Care service, which will be launched
across Children’s Social Care and with children and families. The
principles that will shape and support the work we undertake with
children have been identified within the Mission Statement. This
promise to our children will shape the work that we do, which will
include collaboration with families and creating care plans that support
permanence, create stability and support transitions.

22  The service will introduce the “About Me” profiles that will help children
and young people know and understand more about their social workers
and the Children in Care Service.

23  Dip sampling will continue across the service in relation to care plans,

PEP and education, training and employment. This will consider
children’s views regarding their education and how they have been able

Page 21



to participate in meetings. Learning will be fed back to the service for
development purposes.

24  The Children in Care and Care Leaving services are in the early
process of developing a Pathway to Independence project that will
support our children to develop the real skills for transition into
adulthood, which will support with care planning and ensure that
children are more actively involved in their plans and develop skills to
prepare them for adulthood.

Background papers
o Data summary (Appendix 2)

Authors
Rachael Riley Tel: 03000 264893
Lee Peacock Tel: 03000 264443

Page 22



Appendix 1. Implications

Legal Implications
None.

Finance
No budget requirements.

Consultation
Children in care engaged in this survey.

Equality and Diversity / Public Sector Equality Duty

The service continually seeks to address inequalities and the survey is
designed to further support and address equality and diversity for children in
our care.

Human Rights
Article 12 of the United Nations Convention on the Rights of the Child.

Crime and Disorder
Not affected.

Staffing
Existing staff will support the survey.

Accommodation
Not affected.

Risk

Safeguarding of all young people will be a priority of the group, which is
supported by Children’s Social Care Staff. Surveys were confidential and
voluntary.

Procurement
Not affected.

Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank



Children in Care 2024 Page:1

Children in Care 2024

Children in Care 2024

This report was generated on 02/05/24. Overall 30 respondents completed this questionnaire.
The report has been filtered to show the responses for 'All Respondents'.

The following charts are restricted to the top 12 codes. Lists are restricted to the most recent
100 rows.

Do you know your worker's name?

How much do you agree or disagree with the following statements... (My worker is
friendly and easy to talk to)

Agree a bit (4) -14%

Neither agree nor disagree (3) -11%
Disagree a bit (-)

Disagree alot (-)

How much do you agree or disagree with the following statements... (My worker is kind
and helps me to understand things)

Agree alot (20) _69%
Agree a bit (5) -17%
Neither agree nor disagree (4) -14%
Disagree a bit (-)

Disagree a lot (-)

Page 25

Snap snapsurveys.com



Children in Care 2024 Page:2

Children in Care 2024
How much do you agree or disagree with the following statements... (My worker takes
time to get to know me)

Neither agree nor disagree (3) -11%
Disagree a bit (-)

Disagree alot (-)

How much do you agree or disagree with the following statements... (My worker involves
me in decisions and acts upon what | say)

Neither agree nor disagree (2) .7%
Disagree a bit (-)

Disagree alot (-)

How much do you agree or disagree with the following statements... (My worker does
what they say they will do)

Agree a bit (6) -21%

Neither agree nor disagree (2) .7%
Disagree a bit (-)

Disagree alot (-)

Page 26

Snap snapsurveys.com



Children in Care 2024 Page:3

Children in Care 2024
Do you find it easy or difficult to understand my care plan?

Neither easy nor difficult (11) _ 37%
veryeasy ) [N
casy ) [ =

Difficult (2) . 7%
Very difficult (2) . 7%

How easy or difficult do you find it to contact your worker?

veryeasy .2 | -
cesy (10) N =
Neither easy nor difficult (6) -21%

Difficult (-)

Very difficult (-)

How many social workers have you had since being in care?

s oo I -
4 (6) _20%
2 (4) -13%
32) 7%

1(0)

Has anyone helped you understand why you couldn’t live with your family?

ves <) [ -
Don't know (5) -17%

No (-)

Page 27

Snap snapsurveys.com



Children in Care 2024 Page:4

Children in Care 2024
How much do you agree or disagree with the following statements... (I get on well with
the adults that I live with)

sgree 22) [ -
Agree a bit (6) -21%

Neither agree nor disagree (1) I3%
Disagree a bit (-)

Disagree (-)

How much do you agree or disagree with the following statements... (I have someone |
can talk with about any worries or when things are not going well)

saree o) [ -
Agree a bit (2) .7%
Neither agree nor disagree (1) I4%
Disagree a bit (-)

Disagree (-)

How much do you agree or disagree with the following statements... (I am helped to see
my family and friends as often as | would like)

sgree o) [
Agree a bit (5) -18%

Neither agree nor disagree (1) I4%
Disagree a bit (1) I4%

Disagree (1) I4%

Page 28

Snap snapsurveys.com



Children in Care 2024 Page:5

Children in Care 2024
How much do you agree or disagree with the following statements... (I have positive
relationships with people who are important to me)

Disagree a bit (1) I4%
Neither agree nor disagree (-)

Disagree (-)

How much do you agree or disagree with the following statements... (Things are good at
school/college)

sgree o2 |
Agree a bit (8) _30%

Neither agree nor disagree (3) -11%

Disagree (3) -11%

Disagree a bit (1) I4%

How much do you agree or disagree with the following statements... (I feel good about
my own health and wellbeing)

Neither agree nor disagree (3) -11%
Disagree a bit (1) I4%

Disagree (1) I4%

Page 29

Snap snapsurveys.com



Children in Care 2024 Page:6

Children in Care 2024
How much do you agree or disagree with the following statements... (I know where | can
get help if I need it)

soree o) [ -
Agree abit (2) .7%
Neither agree nor disagree (2) .7%
Disagree a bit (1) I4%

Disagree (-)

How much do you agree or disagree with the following statements... (I feel safe)

rore o) I -

Agree abit (1) I3%
Neither agree nor disagree (1) I3%
Disagree a bit (1) I3%

Disagree (-)

Overall, how happy or unhappy are you with the support that you receive?

ey & I

Neither happy nor unhappy (3) -11%
Unhappy (1) I4%
Very unhappy (1) I4%

Page 30

Snap snapsurveys.com



Feedback from our Children
IN Care Annual survey

215t June

(Carried out between 26 February and 30™" April 2024)

Durham %‘%




Z¢€ abed

30 surveys were completed by children in
care

The survey link was sent to carers for them
to support their children to complete or
completed together with their worker

Most children who completed the survey
told us that they have positive relationships
with those that are important to them, that
they value the relationship with their social
worker, they know where they can get help
and they feel safe.

m /V QuIucIHIaliu

Consett /\

Houghton'Seaham
le Spring
Iston 0.
DS Peterlee
A1(M) \
North Spennymoor Ha
Pennines ABiSkhIOpd
AONB ucklan 164
Newton
Aycliffe
stmorland Middle
(66| Barnard Castle Thornat
Darlington
A6 Yarm
Kirkby A A19J




Happy With The Service

» Getting on well with the adults that they live
with.

« Having someone with whom they can talk
to about their worries.

« My worker is friendly and easy to talk to

* My worker takes the time to get to know
me

* Feeling involved in decisions about their
own lives.

» Helped to understand why | cannot live
with my family

» Helped to see their friends and family as
often as | like

« My worker does what they say they're
going to.

Durham %
County Council ‘qg‘ér




Key Learning Points

» Changes in the workforce impacts on children’s
relationships with their professional.

« Some children advised that they did not know the
name of their social worker which is a concern.

« Some children said they were not happy with their
education.

« We will develop a consultation group with children
to shape and develop questions for the next
annual survey for children in care . We want to
ensure that we have explored the pertinent areas
that helps support and develop practice for
Durham and produce good outcomes for
children.

Pty

Durham %
County Council ﬁqaﬁr




¢ abed

We did...

‘About Me’ profiles to be rolled out across the children in care teams to ensure that they have details of their
social worker and how to get in touch with them.

There has been an investment in service wide development sessions “Clarity and Confidence”. These sessions are
specifically designed to empower practitioners to utilise the tools and develop confidence to support children
through their journey through care.

The importance of children and young people’s views being actively incorporated into their PEP meetings so their
views around education can be heard and responded to.

Dip sampling will continue across the service in relation to care plans, PEP and education training and
employment. This will consider children’s views regarding their education and how they have participated in
meetings.

Durham 5%

Workforce stability is a priority in order to ensure that meaningful relationships are built. A‘
County Counci sq;;



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 10

Corporate Parenting Panel

21 June 2024

County Council g\ggr

Care Leavers Service — Custody Project

Report of Rachel Farnham, Head of Children’s Social Care, Children
and Young People’s Service, Durham County Council

Electoral division(s) affected:
None

Purpose of the Report

1 This report is to explain the Custody Project being run by the Care
Leavers Service. The progress of this project and the next steps are
detailed.

Executive summary

2 The Custody Project was set up as there are 13 young people in
custody who are Care Leavers in County Durham. There are additional
Care Leavers from other areas of the country within Durham Prison
which is a holding prison for young people awaiting their sentence or to
be moved to other prisons.

3 We wanted to ensure that we reached out to these young people so that
they understand the local offer and the support they are entitled to as
Care Leavers.

4 We wanted to ensure that young people in custody got the support that
any good parent would give when they are in custody.

5 We wanted to ensure we increase our ability to work with staff in the
prison to continue care planning for the young person in custody so that
we support them well when they are there and are able to plan for their
release.

6 So far, we have set up monthly sessions within Durham Prison and
have had 38 young people attending. This has consisted of the Care
Leavers we have there and Care Leavers from other areas of the
country.

7 We have linked Care Leavers from other areas of the country with their
own local authority and been able to remind them to access their Local
Offer.

Page 37



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

Page 38

We have continued positive links with some of our own Care Leavers in
custody and re-established links with others, ensuring that they all
understand the role of the Young People’s Advisor and the Local Offer.

We have developed a positive link with the Care Leaver Lead within the
prison, she is also now providing her own groups for Care Leavers to
attend.

Examples of changes we have made for young people are, that staff in
the prison understand the needs of Care Leavers better, practical
support has been given such as ensuring a young person has trainers,
a young person who was living on the streets is now actively working
with us again.

Next steps are to ensure that the custody offer is robust to all of our
Care Leavers in custody. We want to make links with other prisons.

Other authorities in our region are now copying our custody model and
making links with prisons in their areas. We are reaching out to them so
that we can be directly involved in their prison sessions, to see our Care
Leavers and ensure they are offered support.

We are seeking to directly build our own links with Wetherby Young
Offender Institution so that we can build our custody offer at an earlier
stage of the transition to being a Care Leaver as not only Care Leavers
serve their sentences there but also some of our young people in care.

We want to establish a young people group in Durham Prison which will
help inform our future practise. The group would tell us what works well
for them and help us understand the factors that have meant they end
up in custody so we can work with our partners in the Youth Offending
and Probation Services on earlier effective interventions.

We are involving Durham Prison in our Peer Mentoring Project, working
with them to develop a Peer Mentor scheme within the prison.

We are offering a Peer Mentor to young people in custody outside of
our area so that even if they don’t have active support from a Young
Person’s Advisor they have someone to visit them who can offer
support and advice.

We are completing an audit of all our young people in custody, to look
at the factors that led them to being in custody and to ensure we have a
base line custody offer developed for all young people in custody.

This audit will be completed by June 2024.



Recommendations
18  Corporate Parenting Panel are asked to:

(@) Note the progress of the Custody Work the Care Leavers Service
are doing and agree the future plans.

Page 39



Background

19  As part of the Care Leavers Service Development Plan linked to
national priorities, we wanted to ensure a consistent offer for all Care
Leavers in custody.

20 The Team Manager contacted Durham Prison to facilitate a link with the
Care Leaver Lead. It was decided to pilot a session which the Team
Manager attended with a Young People’s Advisor. Care Leavers in
Durham Prison who would be invited to attend the session were
identified.

21  This was a well-attended session and it became clear that Care Leavers
were asking about the Durham Local Offer and what their own local
authority could offer. This formed the basis of the work plan.

Main implications

22  We are able to better the Pathway Plan for Durham Care Leavers in
Durham Prison as we now have the access to be able to build on our
relationships with them, ensuring that they know about the Local Offer
and what support their YPA can offer

23  We are able to provide practical support so that Care Leavers are not
disadvantaged due to birth family members not offering support, such
as providing them items such as trainers to wear in prison.

24  We are able to direct Care Leavers from other authorities to their own
local authority and ensure they understand their rights as a Care
Leaver.

Conclusion

25  The Custody Project within Durham is leading the way regionally to
ensure that Care Leavers in custody understand their rights and have
access to support and effective Pathway Planning.

Author

Lesley Baldry Tel: 07717541944

Page 40



Appendix 1: Implications

Legal Implications
There are no legal implications, this project has been agreed by the Durham
Prison Service and sits within the guidelines for professional visits.

Finance
There are no financial implications other than those in providing Care Leavers
with practical support which sits within the Care Leavers budget.

Consultation

Young people are consulted during visits so that we understand the impact
this has had on them and a more formal consultation group will be developed
in the New Year.

Equality and Diversity / Public Sector Equality Duty
There is equal access for all Care Leavers within Durham Prison, regardless
of which authority they come from.

Climate Change
Staff car share when attending visits to limit the impact on climate change.

Human Rights

The Human Right to Liberty and Security is referenced as we seek to ensure
that Pathway Planning takes place to ensure the young person is well
supported back into the community and any cycle of criminal activity is
addressed.

Crime and Disorder
The Custody Project should have a positive impact on reducing reoffending.

Staffing
The existing team from the Care Leavers Service are supporting young people
with this project.

Accommodation
The custody project takes place within Durham Prison.

Risk
There is no risk to young people or staff as the visits take place with the
support and involvement of prison staff and within their safety guidelines.

Procurement
No implications.

Page 41



This page is intentionally left blank



Care Leavers Service

Custody Project
Tracy Shaw, Team Manager
Lesley Baldry, Service Manager

& @l
o
L

Durham &%k

County Council ﬁéaﬁv




Background

The Care Leavers Service have 13 Young people in
custody and were concerned about the following:

Access to the young people and getting visits booked
to see them.

That young people in custody understanding the
Local Offer and what support they can get as a Care
Leaver.

Embed this within our CLA team for the children
looked after in custody.

Do they have the support in place that would be
expected by any good parent when in custody.

Do we have good links with prison staff to ensure
care planning takes place for the young person when
they are in custody and for when they come out of
custody.

Durham 43
County Council ‘&%




Gy abed

What did we do?

e Team Manager Tracy Shaw and Young People’s
Advisor Graham linked in with Rachael Brown, Care
Leaver Lead in Durham prison.

* Adrop-in session was agreed to take place monthly so
that any Care Leaver in custody could attend and
speak with Tracy and Graham.

* The sessions began in August 2023
* Up until now we have had 38 young people attending

* Sessions take place every month and the care leaver
leads from probation also attend and follow up with
* We have outcomes such as:

- Linking young people up with the care leavers
service in their area

- Educating young people on the local offer and
their entitlements

- Helping them understand their eligibility

Durham 3
County Council ‘&5




Future Plans

Make links in other prisons we know our young people are in such
as Low Newton and Wetherby to try and establish the same groups.

Encourage other authorities to do the same in their local prisons.
Stockton have agreed to do something similarin Holme House
prison.

Audit our young people in custody to consider the factors that have
contributed to them being there and how we can work with services
around earlier intervention.

Develop a peer support group within Durham prison where young
people influence how we develop this work in the future — early
2024,

Ensure we have an agreed service bottom line of support for all
young people in custody including time lines on file for support
given to ensure stability and support when they leave custody.

DurhamZi3
County Council ‘&%




Examples of positive outcomes from the
voice of the young person

Ly abed

Young people feel supported again

One young person returned to tell us he had made
links with his authority and his worker was visiting
now she knew he was in prison.

A Durham young person said he would not be here if it
wasn’t for the care leavers service

Young people are aware of the support the can get
and are now accessing that support.

Young people are spreading the messages amongst
others in prison to raise awareness.

The staff in the prison understand care experienced
young people better.

County Council ‘&5




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 11

Corporate Parenting Panel

21 June 2024

County Council ggla{r

Performance Update

Report of Stephen Tracey, Corporate Equality and Strategy
Manager, Durham County Council

Electoral division(s) affected:

None.

Purpose of the Report

1 The purpose of the presentation is to provide the Corporate Parenting
Panel with an overview of performance in relation to children in our care
and care leavers.

Executive summary

2 The Corporate Equality and Strategy Manager will deliver a
presentation at the meeting giving an overview of performance.

Recommendation

3 Members of the Corporate Parenting Panel are asked to note
information contained within the presentation and comment accordingly.

Page 49



Background

4 A quarterly performance management framework is presented to
Corporate Parenting Panel which is structured around the Local
Government Association’s Key Lines of Enquiry for Corporate Parenting
Panel members.

Conclusion

5 Members of the Corporate Parenting Panel will be sighted on
performance in relation to children in our care and care leavers and will
have an opportunity to discuss performance at the meeting.

Other useful documents

o Quarterly Performance Scorecard
Author
Helen McAloon Tel: 03000 268 026

Page 50



Appendix 1: Implications

Legal Implications

We have a statutory duty to comply with all duties in relation to the children
and young people who are in the care of DCC

Finance
N/A

Consultation
N/A

Equality and Diversity / Public Sector Equality Duty

N/A

Climate Change
N/A

Human Rights
N/A

Crime and Disorder
N/A

Staffing
N/A

Accommodation
N/A

Risk

N/A

Procurement
N/A

Page 51



This page is intentionally left blank



County Durham Corporate Parenting Panel: Performance Management Framework

What are the characteristics of our cohort of children in care and care leavers?

4
Measure 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 P 023»‘ /24 England | North East
Rate of CLA per 10,000 u18 population [Number] 85 92 96 99 107 123
per = pop [840] [914] [949] [985] [1067] [1225]
L See
Age and length of time in care . N/A N/A
presentation
See
CLA Placement breakdown . N/A N/A
presentation
11% 15.1% 17% 10%
P t f CLA placed 20 mil tside LAb d 7% 8% 9% 10%
ercentage o placed over 20 miles (outside oundary) b b b b (117/1071] [182/1208] | (2022/23) RCISYIoE
Number of children placed for adoption 24 31 39 37 26 26 N/A N/A
Percentage of CLA who are unaccompanied asylum seeking 0.4% 0.1% 0.1% 2% 5% 6% 9% 5%
children [Number] u18 3] [1/914] [1/949] [18/982] [53/1067] [79/1225] | (2022/23) | (2022/23)
See

Social worker caseloads

presentation

N/A N/A

€G abed




Do @r partner agencies understand their role in supporting us as corporate parents?
o
4 Q4
Meadsure 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 England | North East
10% 15% 11% 11%
P t f CLA with issing incident during th 5% 6% 7% 10%
ercentage o with a missing incident during the year 6 6 6 6 (143/1427] PYENPIOSMN (2022/23)  (2022/23)
Percentage of children on Child Exploitation and Vulnerability 35% 23%
Tracker that were CLA? [51/144] [62/269]
R ted 14.4 14.4
Strengths & Difficulties Questionnaire - Average score 14.1 13.6 13.5 14.1 14.8 eporte
annually (2022/23) | (2022/23)
Percethage of looked after children aged 10.a.nd above Fonvictfed 59 3% 3% 2% 3% 3.9% 2% 3%
or subject to a Youth Caution or Youth Conditional Caution during
, [17] [11] [11] [12] [15] [27] (2022/23)  (2022/23)
the year [number of children]*

How are we giving children and young people the chance to express their views, wishes and feelings? How do

we know tho

se are being acted on?

2020/21 Q4
Measure 2018/19 2019/20 [Provisional] 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 England | North East
69 (59
CDYJS, 10 46 63
Number of CLA accessing an independent visitor 16 AFC) 15 (45 CDYJS, 1 (61 CDYIS, 2
waiting for NEPACS) NEPACS)

match




Are we providing stable environments for children in our care?

4
Measure 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 202?3 /24 England | North East
Percentage of CLA with 3 or more placements during the year 11% 8% 8% 12% 9% 11% 10% 9%

& P gthey [93/840] | [74/914] [73/949] [122/985] | [101/1067] | [133/1225] WELVPICE)MPLrPIPEY
Percentage of CLA continuously for 2.5 years or more aged under 62% 65 67% 64% 68% 70% 69% 68%
16 who were living in the same placement for at least 2 years [186/298] [ 203/314] [225/338] [239/371] [263/389] [274/394] (2022/23) | (2022/23)
Average number of days between a child entering care and 454

C . . . 431 428 439
moving in with its adoptive family, adjusted for foster carer 466 423 491 (Q1
. [2015-18] [2016-19] [2018-2021]

adoptions (A10) [Last 12 months] 2022/23)
Average time between an LA receiving court authority to place a 184

. . . ) 190 192 178
child and the LA deciding on a match to an adoptive family (A2) [2015-18] [2016-19] [2018-2021] 144 157 169 (Q1 N/A
[Last 12 months] 2022/23)
Percentage of children adopted from care (as % of total children 12.3 16% 18% 19% 18% 13% 10% 13%
leaving care) [number of children adopted shown in brackets] [39 of 316] [55/352] [54 / 304] [65] [65/360] [51/402] (2021/22) | (2021/22)
Number of Mainstream Foster Carers (Approved in period YTD) 26 12 21 29 12 23 N/A N/A
Number of Friends and Family Foster Carers (Approved in period 129 121 190 150 519 TBC N/A N/A
YTD)
Number of Adopters (Approved in period YTD) 22 25 47 40 35 15 N/A N/A

GG abed




)
Q

Q
What are we doing to look after the health and wellbeing of children in our care?

o
4
Measure 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 202% /24 England | North East
Initial !—|ea|th Ass.essments completed within 20 working days of 63% 23% 23% 59% 65% 59% N/A N/A
the child becoming looked after
89% 92%
CLA with the required number of health assessments 93% 94% 91% 93% 95% 84% (2022;23) (2022;23)
76% 76%
CLA who have had a dental check 86.0% 87% 41% 85% 95% 77% o 2/"23) o 2/"23)
Reported 82% 84%
CLA wh i isati -to-dat 999 999 909 919 829
whose immunisations were up-to-date % % % % % annually (2022/23) | (2022/23)
CLA whose development assessments were up to date (CLA 12+ Reported 88% 90%
95% 97% 83% 99% 97%
months and aged 5 or younger at 31 March) ° ° ° ° 0 annually (2022/23) | (2022/23)
% CLA identified as having a substance misuse problem in the 2 0% 2 0% Data Error 1.0% 1.0% Reported 3% 3%
year annually (2022/23) | (2022/23)
Percentage of new presentations to drug and alcohol treatment 10% 10% TBC 17% 13% 14% 44% 33%
during period who were CLA [Number] YTD [18 of 185] | [21 of 216] [27/149] [17/126] [23/168] (2020/21) | (2020/21)
Care leavers aged 17-21 who are pregnant or mothers (as a % of 26.3% 29% 19% 24% N/A N/A
female care leavers) [25/95] [32/111] [22/114] [27/115]
Care leavers aged 17-25 who are pregnant or mothers (as a % of 30% 24% 30% N/A N/A
female care leavers) [39/132] [33/137] [40/135]




What are outcomes like for our care leavers?

4
Measure 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 ZOZC; /24 England | North East
Percentage of care leavers age 18-21 who have stayed 21% 18% 14%
N/A N/A N/A

with their foster carer / / / [50] [44] [39]
Percentage of care leavers aged 17-18 in education, employment 61% 65% 76% 67% 65% 57% 66% 63%
or training (EET) [48/79] [55/84] [59/78] [56/84] [68/104] [54/95] (2022/23) (2022/23)
Percentage of care leavers aged 17-18 in suitable 86% 90% 95% 93% 86% 95% 91% 93%
accommodation [68/79] [76/84] [74/78] [76/84] [89/104] [90/95] (2022/23) | (2022/23)
Percentage of care leavers aged 17-18 in higher education 0% 0% 0% 6% 0% 1% 3% 3%

& & & [0] [0] [0/ 78] [5/83] [0/104] [1/95] (2022/23) | (2022/23)
Percentage of care leavers aged 19-21 in education, employment 51% 54% 56% 61% 56% 52% 56% 52%
or training (EET) [80/156] [94/175 ] [110/197] [134/218] [127/228] [93/178] (PIrPIPENN (2022/23)
Percentage of care leavers aged 19-21 in suitable 86% 83% 90% 85% 84% 94% 88% 89%
accommodation [131/156] [144/175] [177/197] [186/218] [192/228] [167/178] (2022/23) | (2022/23)
Percentage of care leavers aged 19-21 in higher education 7% 9% 6% 8% 9% 11% 6% 8%

& & & [11/156] | [16/175] [11/197] [18/218] [21/228] [19/178] | (2022/23) | (2022/23)

/G abed



This page is intentionally left blank



Children in our Care

Q4 2023-24

Durham &%k




C h i I d ren in Care: 1.225 79 Unaccompanied Asylum-Seeking Children
Y

2 This has decreased from 88 UASC in Q3, however
% Monthly CiC Numbers will remain high due to the National Transfer
Scheme

1225

Slight reduction in ul CiC starts as % of all CiC starts against
2021-22 (-2% points) although increase in volume
Increase in age 1-4 year olds and 10-15 year olds
Reduction in 5-9 year olds

CiC Ceases Trend

.....

CiC Starts Trend

Increase in overall number of CiC and rate is now above
regional and statistical neighbour average
Just over a third of children have been in care for less than 12

months whilst nearly a quarter have been in care for 5+ years
501 children became a child in care April 2023 —March 2024

395 children left care April 2023 —March 2024

LoT in Care | 0-3 Months | 3-6 Months |6-12 Months| 1-2 Years 2-5 Years 5+ Years | Grand Total
No. 119 124 173 207 313 289 1225
% 10% 10% 14% 17% 26% 24% 100%

Durham /%

County Council *

80% of Social Workers in our Children in Care and Care Leavers Teams had fewer than 25 cases, 2% with 30+



Initial Health Assessments Review Health
Assessments

88%
90%

72 80% 79% . 79% RHAs
80% 719 69 - 72 6 7194%
70% s .64 i 64 78% 350 94% 87% 1o0%
- b 3% 79 599 55 52 55 88% 88% 89% 84% 89%
o 50% 85064007 509 507 N 82% 82% o
50% 443 300 I O
40% 80%
30% 250 70%
20%
10% 200 60%
0% 50%
[ o o - - - — o o o o~ [22] [32] [12] 2] =
o o 3 o o = 3 o = o 3 o o o 3 o 150
: 8 & 5 2 & & 3 2 8 & 3 3z & & 3 o
o ] 5 i = N & T = o X T = - & T 241
ES z o} g 4 = 3 5 e E S 8 ey = 3 g 100 . 0%
Q1 Q2 Qa3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 20%
N | A Indicator: Coram BAAF paperwork and consent received from LA within 0-7 working days of child coming into care (AMENDED to 0-5 Days 50 10%
from 2021) ’
I CDDFT Indicator: Number of children offered an IHA appointment by CDDFT within 15 working days of health receiving correctly completed 0 0%
paperwork and consent from Local Authority Jan-Mar22 = Apr-lun22 | Jul-Sep22 = Oct-Dec2? | lan-Mar23 = Apr-Jun23 | Jul-Sep?3 | Oct-Dec?3 = lan-Mar24
s Statutory Indicator: Of the number of children coming into care in the quarter; number of children seen by a Paediatrician within 20 working days Q4 Q1 a2 Q3 Q4 Q1 a2 a3 Q4
of coming into care

mmmm Number of RHAs completed within timescales mmmm Number of RHAs not completed within timescales

Just over half of children in care received an Initial Health Assessment % RHAs due completed within timescales

within 20 working days of coming into care in the quarter. .
g day g a Review Health Assessments completed

.. ) .. oL within timescale are improving — 33 out
Rising children coming into care has affected this indicator : P g
of timescale

equired paperwork submitted in timescale remains at 50%

T9-3ped

County Council ‘&5



Placements and Placement Stability

-
QD
(Q A . . . . .
©  CLAplacements by type and provision A higher proportion of children in Durham are placed in foster placements
Foster placements Own provision and in in-house provision to our benchmarks.
u Foster
placements = Own provision
3:1;1% omerprovision P 1@CEMenNt Stability remains an ongoing area of focus — children with 3+

homes in one year is just above benchmarks

Mot recorded Mot recorded

LA 2022-23 T2% LA 2022-23 58% HH . H H
SNs 202923 b5 SNs 202923 4 Long term stability is now slightly higher than benchmarks
Eng 2022-23 68% Eng 2022-23 A44%
% CiC with 3+ homes in year % CiC for at least 2.5 years and aged under 16
12 1 who have been in the same home for at least 2
o o o o 10 years
Children in Family Settings: 10 0 g 0 .
s o 70 68 69 68 68
60
. . . . . 6 50
REdUCtIOn 1 proportlon bUt INCrease In numbers , 20
30
Reduction in number and % in in-house FC 2 20
10
1 1 0 0
Increase In Other placement types (eXC adoptlon) Durham latest Durham England SNs NE Durham Latest Durham England SNs NE
2022/23 2022/23
0,
04-Jun-19 11-Mar-20 25-Mar-24 No. % change No. % Chraenge
Placement type No. % No. % No. % change |[onJunl19| change CF())VID
Friends and Family 134 15% 126 14% 217 18% 83 62%
IFA 126 15% 159 18% 272 23% 146
In House Foster Care 422 49% 430 48% 388 32% -34
Placed For Adoption 24 3% 23 3% 23 2% -1
Placed With Parents 66 8% 62 7% 105 9% 39 59% 43 69%
Family Settings 772 89% 800 89% 1005 83% 233 68% 205 67%
Grand Total 866 902 1207 341 305




Missing Children

180
Children in
care

1199
missing
episodes

Return to
Home
Interviews

851
Accepted

835

MNo. of Missing Episodes by Date

@ Mo. of Episodes ¢ Mo. of Children

Completed

223 of 1442 looked after children had a missing incident in the last 12 months

Latest data LA 22-23 SNs 22-23 Eng 22-23
Number of all CLA with a missing incident 223 of 1442 143
Percentage of all CLA with a missing incident 15% 10% 11% 11%
Total number of missing incidents for all CLA 2661 996
Average number of incidents per CLA who went missing 11.9 7.0 8.0 6.4
Missing incidents - return home interviews
Latest data
Missing children offered return interview 172 0f 223 77%
Missing children not offered return interview 230f 223 10% 7% 71%
Missing children return interview offer not recorded 17 of 223 8%
Missing children where return interview was n/a 11 of 223 5%
Latest data
Missing children accepted return interview 122 0f 172 71%
Missing children not accepted return interview A4 af 172 26%
Missing children return interview acceptance not recorded 6 of 172 3% Offered RHI Accepted RHI

Monthly increase in volume of missing
episodes and number of children in care
with a missing episode since January,
however it is typical that we see fewer
episodes in colder weather so an increase

200 - into Spring is understandable
150 . .
High rate of completion of return to home
100 7 s 52 interviews (98%), however there has been a
g 51 . 1 58 decline since December but this could be a
50 § b —_—— 34 60 38 =
D .-#--_.--—— — . .
2 39 40 " ~ recording issue
0
April May June July August Septe... October MNove... Dece... January Febru... March
2023 2023 2023 2023 2023 2023 2023 2023 2023 2024 2024 2024



Care leavers by current age and gender

80
&0
57
—
45
27
18
1
2 o]
—
16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24

Gender aFemale @ Male

e

QD
«Q
@
(o]
D

&0

Non-Binary & Transgender

A

Care leavers by whether in touch

e

a0

i)

40

20

a0

57

T
20

. M

Care leavers by eligibility status

a0
&0

&0 57
43 43

40

27 el
18 15
1" 20 1
o : "
n I -

21 X 23 24 B/ 17 18 1% 20 21 22 3 24

In touch & @iNo @Yes @Young Person Mo Longer Requir. .

Eligibility 5t... @ Former Relevant @ Relevant

| Care Leavers by Age Group and Whether in Touch
Age group
In Touch YN No.

Yes 2 100% B8 93%
Mo

Total

2 100% 95

22.24
%

Total
No. %
-

153 84% 52 93% 295
7%
100% 182 100% 56 100% 335

40

Care Leavers by Age and Whether in Touch

In touch 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 Total
2 5 85 710 2 2 3

Mo 1 1

Yas 2 3 85 69 50 34 25 16 11 295

Young Person Mo Longer 1 1 2

Requires Services

Total 2 5 50 B0 57 45 27 18 11 335

e

Care Leavers by
Eligibility Status
Eligibility status No.

Former Relevant | 327

466 children are with the Care Leavers Team aged between 16-24

Qa re Leavers 274 Relevant or Former Relevant Care Leavers aged 17-21

50 of our care leavers
are recorded as being
unaccompanied
asylum seekers
(UASC) 42 are former
relevant status and 8
eligible

Of the 42, 41 are
male aged 18-24, 1
female.

We currently have
136 eligible YPS team
monitoring open
cases in addition to
the 274 aged 17-21.

Durham 3
County Council &qgg




Care Leavers — Suitable Accommodation

Age group 16 17-18 19-21 22-24 Total .

Accommodation No. %  No. %  No. %  No. %  No. % The proportion of care leavers
80 suitable . . .

Yes 2 100% 91 96% 171 94% 49 88% 313 93% In SUItabIe accommOdatlon

No 4 4% M 6% 7 13% 22 7% _ 1 (o)
80 Total 2 100% 95 100% 182 100% 56 100% 335 100% aged 17 18 IS 95%’ (above

-
A

benchmarks) and for ages 19-

21 is 94% (above benchmarks)
Care leavers in unsuitable accommodation by age and type
55 Accommodation code 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 Total
o 1 1 2 . . . .
»a R - Residence not known 1 Majorlty In UnSU|tab|e
H n S - No fixed abode / homeless 2 3 accommodation are in custody

1
1

V - Emergency accommodation 1 1 2

J— v X - In custody 1.3 2 1.3 1 1

16 7 18 19 Y - Other accommodation 1 1 1 3

) i Total 1 3 7 2 2 3 3 1 22

Accommodation sui... @No @ Yes
b A s v
Accommodation suitability Of 17-18 year OIdS (relevant/former relevant) Accommodation SUItablllty Of 19-21 year OldS (former relevant)

ChAT Aged 17 Aged 18 Total ChAT Aged 19 Aged 20 Aged 21 Total
Numbers in cohort 5 90 95 Numbers in cohort 78 57 43 178
In suitable accommodation 80% 96% 95% In suitable accommodation  92% 95% 95% 94%

(N E -l A\ -—
95% s ng 94% SNs Eng == A 04

920 *

)
[ ] Sgitable accom

I\@t suitable

Q1. .
No information 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 Latest snapshot No information '18-19 "19-20 20-21 '21-22 '32.23

80 B Suitable accom

% of YP 17-18
w o
S O
y’
w

oo

o
LI

% of YP 19-21
&

70 Not suitable 75

Latest




Care Leavers - Education, Employment or Training

Cav= Leavers by Whether in Education, Employment or Training (EET)

50
M
21
. H
23 23
. — H -
19 20 b 22 23 24

16 17 18

EET Mo @MNot recorded @ Yes

/

Care Leavers by Main Education, Employment or Training (EET)
Activity and Age Group

Age group 16 17-18 19-21 22-24 Total

EET No. % No. % No. % No. % No. %

-

Yes 1 50% 53 56% 90 49% 28 50% 172 51%

Mot recorded 2 2% 1 1% 3 1%

No 1 50% 40 42% 91 50% 28 50% 160 48%

Total 2 100% 95 100% 182 100% 56 100% 335 100%
N

Care Leavers not in Education, Employment or Training (NEET) by Main Education, Employment or Training (EET) Activity

Main EET activity
A

16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 Total

G6 - Young person not in education, employment or training due to pregnancy or parenting
G5 - Young person not in education, employment or training: other circumstances 1
G4 - Young person not in education, employment or training because of iliness or disability

Total

2 8 6 5 2 4 2 29
12320 7 4 5 3 64
113171014 7 2 3 67
1 238 4523 2314 9 5 160

A

Education, Employment, or Training (EET) of 17-18 year olds (relevant/former relevant)

ChAT Aged 17 Aged 18
Numbers in cohort 5 90
In EET 20% 59%
—%5 Eng =e==|A
80
65 67 65

% of YP 17-18
I
o

20
HYPin EET  MNEET 0
No info 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23

Latest snapshot

Total ChAT Aged 19 Aged 20 Aged 21
95 Numbers in cohort 78 57
57% In EET 49% 58%
—SNS Eng esess| A
65
57 61
° = 60
iy 56 56
e 55 >4
e
‘G e
& 50

®YPin EET NEET
No info "18-19  "19-20 '20-21 '21-22  '22-23

Education, Employment, or Training (EET) of 19-21 year olds (former relevant)

Total
178
52%

Latest

The proportion of care
leavers in Education,
Employment or Training
aged 17-18 is 57% which is
below all benchmarks.

For those aged 19-21 this
is 52%, also below
benchmarks




Age da Item 12

Corporate Parenting Panel
21 June 2024 County Council s}gl&{r

Corporate Parenting Panel Annual
Report 2023-24

Report of Rachel Farnham, Head of Children’s Social Care, CYPS,
Durham County Council, and

Martyn Stenton, Head of Early Years, Vulnerable Children and
Inclusion, CYPS, Durham County Council

Electoral division(s) affected:
Countywide

Purpose of the Report

1 The purpose of this report is to present the Corporate Parenting
Panel Annual Report April 2023 — March 2024, for agreement. The
Annual Report is attached as Appendix 2.

Executive summary

2 Over previous years, changes have been implemented to strengthen
political and management oversight of the Corporate Parenting Panel
and increase the voice of children and young people in our work.
This continues, to ensure the best possible outcomes are achieved
for our young people.

3 The Corporate Parenting Panel’s Terms of Reference form part of
Durham County Council’s constitution.

4 The Corporate Parenting Panel provide an annual report that will be
shared with Council and Scrutiny.

5 This is the seventh annual report of the Corporate Parenting Panel,
following the changes to political oversight.

Recommendations
6 Corporate Parenting Panel are requested to:

(a) Discuss and agree the Corporate Parenting Panel Annual
Report 2023-24.

Page 67



Background

v

10

11

12

In July 2021, Durham County Council were subject to a remote
focused inspection led by Children’s Services and Skills on behalf of
Ofsted’s work into how England’s social care system delivered child-
centred practice and care within the context of the restrictions placed
on society during the coronavirus pandemic.

The inspection identified a range of strengths and recognised that the
service knows its children well, with Ofsted commenting that the self-
assessment provided an accurate picture of children in care.

The processes in place to listen to the views of children and young
people and to ensure their views positively impact service delivery
were acknowledged. Inspectors were extremely complimentary about
the Children in Care Council, having had the opportunity to meet
representatives, to hear about their experiences and achievements.

On 14 and 15 November 2023 a focused inspection of care
experienced young people took place by Ofsted. The visit was to
inspect DCC’s arrangements for care leavers specifically in relation to
the quality of preparation for adulthood, the quality and suitability of
accommodation, and care leavers with specific needs. The impact of
leaders on practice was also considered as part of this visit.

Overall, the report presented significant strengths identified within
DCC'’s Leaving Care service and wider systems. Leadership was
seen to be robust, ambitious, and tenacious. Leaders have a
detailed knowledge of the service and responded at pace to changing
needs, which includes development of the Local Offer, the
Unaccompanied Asylum-Seeking Team and Care Leaver Hubs. The
quality of support offered by Young People’s Advisors was positive,
including young people in specific circumstances. Service quality and
grip from councillors and senior leaders through to front line
managers was found to be a strength.

Ofsted made one recommendation in respect of the written report
which was for supervision to ensure it is reflective of the feedback
given by the Young People’s Advisors. This was already an area for
improvement that had been identified by the service.

Development of the Annual Report

13

Page 68

To ensure the voice of the child is reflected in the work of the
Corporate Parenting Panel, young people from the Children in Care
Council, supported by officers from the Participation and Engagement
Team, the Partnerships Team and Investing in Children have an



14

15

16

17

opportunity to develop the Corporate Parenting Panel Annual
Reports.

Young people consider the design, content and language of the
Annual Report to ensure it is easy to read and understand.

To ensure we continue to raise the profile of the Corporate Parenting
Panel, the development of the Annual Report retains a corporate
format, whilst ensuring it uses language and design which is also
appealing to young people.

The Annual Report is hosted on the Durham County Council website,
Investing in Children website, and the Children in Care Council
website.

The Annual Report includes information on:

(@) What a Corporate Parent is

(b)  The role of the Corporate Parenting Panel

(c) The Corporate Parenting Panel’s Terms of Reference

(d)  Service updates

(e) Key performance data

(f)

Achievements during 2023/24

(g) Priorities for 2024/25

Next Steps

18

Corporate Parenting Panel are requested to note the following key
dates for the Corporate Parenting Panel Annual Report:

(@) Council: 17 July 2024 - final version for endorsement

(b)  Children and Young People’s Overview and Scrutiny Committee:

20 September 2024, final version for information

(c) The Corporate Parenting Panel Annual Report has already been

presented to the Children in Care Council, Children’s Social Care
Management Team, Children and Young People’s Services
Management Team and Corporate Management Team for
comment.

Page 69



Conclusion

19 Members of the Corporate Parenting Panel are requested to agree
the Corporate Parenting Panel Annual Report which provides
oversight of the work undertaken during 2023-24, and the priorities
for the year ahead.

Author: Jayne Watson Tel: 03000 268371
Email: Jayne.watson@durham.gov.uk

Page 70


mailto:Jayne.watson@durham.gov.uk

Appendix 1: Implications

Legal Implications
The Corporate Parenting Panel’s Terms of Reference form part of Durham
County Council’s Constitution.

Finance

There are no cost implications. The Corporate Parenting Panel Annual Report
has been designed in house and will primarily be shared by email, and hosted
on the Children in Care Council, Investing in Children and Durham County
Council websites to minimise printing and distribution costs.

Consultation

Young people from the Children in Care Council have been involved in the
development of the Annual Report. The consultation has been done in the
main through meetings coordinated by Investing in Children.

Equality and Diversity / Public Sector Equality Duty
Services are available to all children and young people in our care, in line with
legal duties.

Climate Change
There are no climate change implications

Human Rights
Children and young people have been central to the development of the
Annual Report to ensure that their voices are heard.

Crime and Disorder
There are no crime and disorder implications.

Staffing
There are no staffing implications.

Accommodation
There are no accommodation implications.

Risk
There are no risk implications.

Procurement
There are no procurement implications.

Page 71



Appendix 2: Corporate Parenting Panel Annual Report 2023-24

Attached as a separate document

Page 72



Corporate Parenting Panel
Annual Report

April 2023 to March 2024




Contents page

Introductions

Corporate Parenting

Priorities

Children in Care Council (CICC)
Independent Visitors

Children with Disabilities

Unaccompanied Asylum Seeking Children

Fostering Services
Children’s Homes
Supporting Solutions Service
Adoption

Care Leavers

Health

Full Circle

Virtual School

Employment, Education and Training
Aycliffe Secure Centre
Performance

Achievements

Proud moments

Contact details

Page 3-4
Page 5-6
Page 7
Page 8 -9
Page 10
Page 11 - 16
Page 17
Page 18 - 19
Page 20 - 21
Page 22 - 27
Page 28 - 29
Page 30 - 33
Page 34 - 41
Page 42
Page 43 - 44
Page 45 - 46
Page 47 - 49
Page 50
Page 51 - 54
Page 55 - 58
Page 59

County Council \&



Message from Councillor Mamie Simmons, Chair of the Corporate Parenting Panel

As Chair of the Corporate Parenting Panel, | would like to thank everyone for their support
and dedication throughout the year.

There continues to be many pressures facing the service, including the cost of living crisis,
the impact of the war in Ukraine as well as our commitment to help Unaccompanied
Asylum Seeking Children and young people.

In Durham, we have worked extremely hard to continue to provide support to ensure that
all children, young people, and their carers received the best possible help, advice and
guidance as early as possible.

Our young people continue to make us, as corporate parents extremely proud, and our
Ofsted inspection of our Care Leavers Service demonstrates what we already know.

| am pleased to introduce the Corporate Parenting Panel's seventh annual report, which
outlines the work undertaken across the year to ensure our children and young people
continue to have the best possible opportunities available to them.

March 2024

Cllr Mamie Simmons Cllr Michelle Walton
Chair of the Corporate Vice Chair of the Corporate
Parenting Panel Parenting Panel

Durhan:

County Council \§&




Message from the Children in Care Council (CICC) co-opted representatives

It has been another special year to represent the Children in Care Council at Corporate
Parenting Panel, this year being a bit more special as | am currently working with Durham
County Council on a year long placement as part of my university degree. This has
enabled me to work closer with many different people across Durham and see first hand
the amazing work that goes on throughout the council. This has help me become more
confident and motivated to make a difference and Corporate Parenting Panel meetings
really help towards this.

Last year | developed my own idea and with the support of Durham, | was able to support
a member of the younger CICC group to present my idea, regarding better ways to help
young people who are coming into care, by providing children and young people with a
starter pack (Supply Pack) full of items to help young people feel more comfortable and
settle into their new homes.

Taking this idea to CPP helped bring this idea to life as many councillors came together
and took money out of their respective budgets to help me raise £18,000, which was more
than double what | was initially asking for, which has still left me amazed. It’s incredible to
have a council that go above and beyond and not only try to listen to as many young
people’s voices as possible but act on their opinions and ideas too.

I hope to keep developing and building strong relationships with councillors as | thoroughly
enjoy the work | do with the council and as part of the Corporate Parenting Panel.

Luke

Honestly, | couldn’t ask for more from my Corporate Parenting Panel. They support our
ideas and ambitions, they are impressed by our passion and commitment, and they
celebrate our successes. They believe in us, so much so we were invited to speak at the
regional corporate parenting panel chairs network meeting. Here we presented our Next
Venture Fund, what it is and how we developed how it operates. In the past 12 months |
have been empowered and | think that corporate parenting panel has contributed to this.
Durham’s Children in Care Council (CICC) has been able to achieve some amazing
things. For example, the extension of the Education Fun Fund allowed a young person to
start up a small business making cards with the sewing machine they bought with money
from the fund. Durham CICC have since been inundated with applications, so thank you! |
have said before and | will say it a million times over, the opportunities Corporate
Parenting Panel has provided me, and Durham CICC are unbelievable. On behalf of
Durham CICC, | would like to say how grateful we all are. It just feels like one big family.

Billie Leigh

Durham , .§§

County Council %gr




Corporate Parenting

What is a corporate parent?

When a child is unable to safely live at home and they come into the care of the local
authority it is important that they are properly cared for, supported and loved. The term
corporate parent means that everyone in the Local Authority has a responsibility to think
about the children in our care in everything they do.

Being a corporate parent isn’t just up to the Corporate Parenting Panel, everyone should
be looking out for our children and young people, and every councillor and council
employee has a role to play as the eyes and ears of the community.

Being a corporate parent means doing whatever we can to support young people in our
care and our care leavers, to help them achieve their full potential and have the best
possible outcomes. This sometimes means being a corporate grandparent too.

Why are children in care?

Young people are looked after for a variety of reasons including neglect and abuse. They
could also be in care if their parents are unable to look after them because of their own
complex health needs or behaviours. Some young people have no parents to care for
them, or they could be unaccompanied asylum seekers.

Where are children in care?

Children and young people can be in care in a range of settings, including foster care,
children’s homes, supported lodgings, and secure accommodation — the council is
corporate parent to all of them.

Role of the Corporate Parenting Panel (CPP)

The CPP is a group that is part of the council, which is called a committee. It has 21
councillors as well as council officers. There are also 10 other members, including school
representatives and young people’s representatives to make sure there’s a broad range of
experience and knowledge and that children and young people are heard, and actively
responded to.

Corporate parents have responsibility to act for the children and young people in our care
as a parent would for their own child, and should ask three key questions:

1. If this were my child, would it be good enough?
2. If I were that child, would it have been good enough for me?

3. How could | make it even better?

Durhanii

County Council \&




Corporate Parenting Panel responsibilities
There are a number of things which the Corporate Parenting Panel must do:

1.

Make sure the Council acts as a good corporate parent to children and young

people in care and care leavers, including:

e Young people in children’s homes, foster care and supported living situations

e Young people placed for adoption or placed at home under care planning
regulations

e Young people in secure homes or in custody

Engage and listen to the views of children, young people and their carers

Work in partnership with other agencies to make improvements for our children and
young people in care

Oversee the virtual school for looked after children and young people. For more
information visit http://www.durham.gov.uk/durhamvirtualschool . A sub-group has
been established to lead on this work

Oversee Aycliffe Secure Services. Sub-groups have been established to lead on
this work.

More information on the Corporate Parenting Panel can be found in the constitution of
Durham County Council



http://www.durham.gov.uk/durhamvirtualschool
https://www.durham.gov.uk/constitution
https://www.durham.gov.uk/constitution

Priorities

Updates against 2023-24 CICC priorities

What we said we | Where we are now What young people think
would focus on
Life skills Within the Care Leavers Service, young They are pleased that this

people have created a Life Skills pack which | has been co-designed.
is being piloted. This will be reviewed and
presented to Children’s Social Care
Management Team and the Corporate
Parenting Panel in 2024.

Savings The Fostering Service are focusing on the They are pleased this
need for every child to have a bank account | request from young people
and a form of ID. iS progressing.

Priorities for CICC for 2024-25

The CICC, supported by IIC, identified their overall priorities which cover the following six
areas. Their work over the coming year will focus on some of these:

Feeling Safe

Emotional and Physical Wellbeing
Positive People in Your Life
Being Listened to

Understanding Things Better

To be the best | can

ok

These priorities are supported by the Children’s Social Care teams and the Participation
and Engagement Officer in Safeguarding and Professional Practice. This allows additional
children young people who are care experienced and choose not to attend CICC meetings
to engage in other co-production projects, focus groups, surveys and celebrations where
their views and insights can be heard and used to influence change and service design.

Increasing participation and engagement with a wider range of children and young people
who are care experienced is an ongoing priority for CICC and Children’s Social Care with
a number of new projects reaching new people. For this purpose, awareness raising takes
place through a number of routes, through our teams, CICC roadshows, CICC quarterly
newsletter, Voice and Change Champions network and rolling out IIIC membership across
teams.

CICC representatives bring their plans and updates to CPP to inform of their work, gain
elected member support and influence, and to report on progress and impact. Other
projects and developments are presented to CPP by the relevant Service Leads in
partnership with some of the participating children and young people.

Durhani %.1

/,

County Council

a

3

&9



Children in Care Council (CICC)

The CICC is a group for children and young people who are care experienced in County
Durham and is supported by Investing in Children, who are commissioned by Durham
County Council. The CICC members meet monthly to talk about issues which are
important to them, including their six priority areas, highlight what works and share stories
of the support they have received. This forum is well established, and is split into older and
younger groups as the two age groups often have different priorities.

Senior managers from within Children and Young People’s Services and elected members
who are on the Corporate Parenting Panel (CPP) attend CICC meetings by invitation only
as the young people wanted to determine their own agendas for these meetings.

More information on the CICC can be found at https://www.durhamcicc.co.uk/

Co-opted positions for CICC members

Two young people from the CICC have co-opted positions on the CPP providing panel
representation from the CICC. They attend each meeting (supported by Investing in
Children, and the DCC Patrticipation Worker) to share feedback from the CICC.

In addition, the CICC have a protected slot on each CPP agenda, where they have an
opportunity to provide feedback from CICC meetings, ensuring members of the CPP hear
real views and feedback directly from the young people. The young people are involved in
decision making within the CPP, and this feedback is shared with relevant leads to
influence service decisions and developments as necessary.

Joint CICC/CPP meetings

In addition to the formal CPP meetings, children and young people from the CICC
(supported by Investing in Children) host a joint meeting with the CPP at least once a year.
The young people set the agenda for the meeting and invite members and officers of the
CPP to attend to meet with the CICC.

These meetings are less formal than the CPP meeting and provide an opportunity for all of
the young people who are part of the CICC to raise issues which are important to them
and have discussions directly with members and officers of the CPP and have their ideas,
suggestions and comments heard.

Feedback from the discussions is collated and work takes place within the service to
address these issues, with feedback provided to the CICC.

CICC Newsletters

Young people from the CICC produce newsletters, which are shared with partners across
the service, with children, young people and their families and with the CPP. You can find
copies of the CICC newsletters at https://www.durhamcicc.co.uk/cicc-newsletters

County Council \&



https://www.durhamcicc.co.uk/
https://www.durhamcicc.co.uk/cicc-newsletters

Care Day Saturday 17 February 2024

A range of activities took place to support Care Day, which this year focused on prompting
County Durham’s care community positively. It was hosted by Durham CICC members
and supported by Investing in Children CIC.

Several young people supported a serious of workshops and activities that focused on
looking beyond someone’s care status.

A short film produced by a CICC member was developed and showcased on the day
called #WeAreMoreThanCare , which showed the amazing talents and interest of young
people.

92 people attended, including young people and members of Durham County Council’s
Cooperate Parenting Panel. Everyone had great day celebrating this year’s theme
together and look forward to next year’s event.

Investing in

JOIN US Children/Children in Care
Care Day

Sat Feb 17th 2024
) Cornerstones
5, Chester-le-Street Methodist Church
North Burns
Chester-le-Street
DH3 3TF

a 2pm until 5pm

@ The whole day will be planned
and led by young people to

celebrate morethancare

Film Showcase - by
|, |Alex from Inside a
Media Mind

Canvas’ Care
Corner - arts and
crafts

m FOOD AVAILABLE
2

POE Durham ‘

Investing in Children County Coune

To register your place

CICC Film - We Are
More Than Care .mp4

Durhan:

County Council




Independent Visitors

Any person in care (from primary school age, to turning 18 years old) is entitled to an
Independent Visitor. An Independent Visitor is a volunteer who can help with mental
health and wellbeing, social anxiety, and can also plan trips and activities to do together.

During 2023-24, the service received 75 referrals for an Independent Visitor, a small
increase on the previous year but excellent evidence of the consistent need for support for
young people in care. 50 young people were matched with Independent Visitors, and 23
matches concluded during the period. Matches conclude where a young person has left
care, although the offer of support for those young people remains, some young people no
longer want an Independent Visitor, or the Independent Visitor leaves the role. The
service currently has 60 active matches.

The main impact of having an Independent Visitor is reported as an increase in confidence
and self-esteem amongst young people, and developing independent skills is also
reported as a significant outcome. Feedback from users of the Independent Visitor service
is ...

‘I really enjoy going out with my Independent Visitor, we do lots of different activities and
sometimes have trips to other cities.’ (Young person)

‘It has been very important for both young people to have someone who is not part of the
care team and can listen to them independently’ (Foster Carer)

‘I adore every minute of going out with my young person. We are constantly laughing and
enjoying each other’s company. Some serious chats as well but always in a supportive
way. Such a great scheme’. (Independent Visitor)

‘It is very positive to see how an external relationship can benefit a young person so much.
It is a very strong bond and will hopefully support my young person out of the care system
and into an independent world’. (Social Worker)

‘The Independent Visitor sticks with me whether | have good days or bad days. | can have
very difficult moments when | feel down but they listen to my concerns and frustrations,
and this helps to make me feel better’. (Young person)




Children with disabilities

Durham County Council’s Social Care teams are committed to delivering the very highest
quality services to children and young people who have disabilities, and their families.

We are a specialist service for young people aged 0-18 years old. Those who meet the
eligibility criteria from our team will be assessed under Section 17 of The Children Act
1989.

We are responsible for ensuring all children and young people are safe, happy and
thrive and become as independent as they possibly can be. In all our work, we want
to provide the right services at the right time, and ensure that wherever possible
children are supported and kept safe, primarily by their family and network.

We have a statutory responsibility to provide and / or coordinate the provision of services to
meet the assessed needs of children and young people with disabilities. We endeavour to
put children and young people’s needs at the heart of all we do.

There continues to be development of support for our disabled children in County Durham.
Some of the things that we are most proud of in the last 12 months include:

e We continue to use creative ways to communicate with our disabled children, we
have made use of widgit software to embed symbols in the communication tools we
use to make information accessible. We have developed communication packs and
pecs cards for direct work with children, and upskilled the workforce on social
stories and sign language. The whole team have received BSL training so that we
can communicate better with our children and their families.

e We have worked closely with our SEND sensory team around embedding specialist
assessments for children who have a multi-sensory impairment (MSI).

e We have linked in with our navigation colleagues around strengthening the audit of
referral to our adult’s team for Care Act Assessments allowing for a navigation
referral form and forum to be used and reflects better on children’s files that this is
in place and preparation for adulthood is being considered.

e The CWD team achieved the ‘Investing in Children Award’ and is in the process of
updating their application for 2024.

Durhan: ﬁ

County Council \&




We have clear processes, guidance and procedures for practitioners which includes
a robust eligibility criteria, which allows us to understand when the local offer can be
best utilised prior to commissioning specialist short breaks.

We have worked hard with commissioning colleagues to establish a more robust
short break offer and there has been a tender opportunity and a huge amount of
provider engagement sessions to strengthen the competition and offer for disabled
children and their families to access appropriate services.

We have undergone some significant improvements in how we ensure social care
advice is clearly evident and updated annually. We have always been a part of
Education Health and Care Plans and provided advice upon request, however there
were times when these were not provided in the review process. Processes are
now in place to ensure full social care advice is provided at every annual updated
assessment and this then is shared with our specialist schools where our children
attend.

Recent audit activity identified some very positive feedback about the quality of
social care advice and how this reflected the child’s voice.

Our Team continue to believe that children and families are the expert in their care
and strive to support in providing person centred care. Where there are assessed
needs that can be met through a direct payment, we will support this to be utilised.
Where a child lives with parents, meets our eligibility criteria, and has assessed
needs for short breaks, a direct payment can be offered for them to recruit a support
worker on their own behalf, this also allows families to be more creative in how their
support needs can be met and also provides more flexibility.

We have offered small, personalised budgets through a personalisation pot for
disabled children that can be tailored specifically for disabled children and their
family. These are applied for by professionals and heard at our validation panel.




What our children with a disability and their families tell us we need to do more of
and what we have done!

Ensure we have a voice:

e Improve our voice, hear our wishes and feelings, know, and understand our day-to-
day experiences

e Access to advocacy via NYAS - we are passionate about encouraging parents to
work with NYAS to ensure children’s views are advocated

e Use Mind of My Own Express when this is accessible

e Ensure our Independent Reviewing officer asks us what our wishes are and checks
that everyone is doing their best for us.

Feedback from children, young people and their families:

Feedback about short breaks for a family: “The FSW has been the best one we have had,
she was really interested in our home and what we needed, which was about having respite
over two nights instead of it being spread out across the month, which is now in place”.

Feedback about direct payments from a family: “They are really flexible, loads of changes
have been made so that ‘A’ gets to take part in the right activities with the right carer”.

What continues to happen:

e Children are visited regularly by our named social worker.

e Annual assessments focusing on what is working well for children, their
families/carers, what we are worried about and what needs to happen to meet
children’s needs.

¢ Monitoring and review service which goes beyond the statutory duties of 6 monthly
meetings where each family is contacted at least 12 weekly.

e Ensuring there is a robust plan to meet needs and/or keep us safe. That these are
reviewed and updated regularly by children, families and care teams.

e Parents/carers have access to carer assessments and this forms part of the plan.

¢ Navigation Team referral and transitions implications are considered from 14+

Durham s

County Council \&




This is a leaflet we have produced for children, young people and families:

. \,Sni!;
. i P
LaAre

|:n § Tehn 018 LS

g

3% = [ 69

children with disabilities team

>

Investing in Children

¢

L 1 oY
County Council ‘i

B t% A7 =2

services we can offer

Short Breaks:
A child / young person can benefit from
development of new interests, keeping fit, social
networks with peers and taking part in hobbies.

The frequency and duration of short breaks can
vary: such as

- A virtual activity

- Family days out

- Attending a leisure facility for a few hours per week
- Attending after school clubs

Telephone: 03000 260 270
Email: shortbreakssolutions@durham.gov.uk
County Durham Local Offer - Durham County Council

Our Local Offer is designed to help
you find the very best support for
your child or young person (from
birth to 25 years) with special
educational needs and disabilities
(SEND).

. ) A voluntary organisation which
. ' provides free high-quality

services and support to unpaid

Carers over the age of 18, who
support someone living in

County Durham & Darlington.

Durham County

carers support

Durham SEND Information
Advice and Support Service is a
statutory service supporting
parents/carers of children with
special educational needs and
disabilities {SEND) and children
and young people with SEND.

b

& 7F i d b AR

What we do here at the children

= &3

with disabilities team

At NYAS, we listen to what children
e and young people want. We care
about what they say, and we
empower them to have their voices
heard, especially when other people
are making decisions about their
future.

A social worker will come to meet you and your family
at home to complete and child and family assessment
which gathers information all about you and identifies
whether you are eligible to our service.

The social worker will continue to visit if you are
eligible to our service on a 4-weekly basis for home
visits and TAF meetings. Once the assessment is
complete and a care package is in place, if everything
is working well and there is no need for social worker
intervention you will transfer to monitor and review
service. Here you will be allocated a family support
worker from the children with disabilities team who
will visit you at home on a 3 monthly basis and TAF
meetings will be 6 monthly. The social worker will
remain involved coming to visit you every 6 months
and completing an updated assessment around your
birthday month.

Durham

County Council

EQIET




& QM ¥

Voice ofa child about their social worker

“My social worker,
helps to make sure with my social worker
1 am safe, looked after because we get to go
and help me to go to out for tea and get
activities. My social to listen to music in
worker comes to see the car”.

“1 like spending time

me at my house or at

school to see how 1 n ' v (fh b

am doing.

& Q M@ &

Voice ofa child about their family worker

“My family worker comes to see me K‘ nd
at my house or at school to see how
1 am doing. We sometimes do some
activities together”. H "‘“”

L oV “" “I like it when my social

worker and Family Worker
visit me at home

'
(‘ ’ r‘ M and sometimes at school”.

G S

Care package of direct payments

Some children and young people have a care package
of direct payments. This allows the young person to
go out within the community supported by a direct
payment worker to help build social skills,
independence, life skills and much more.

o SR+ P

Capturing direct work , wishes and feelings

Sometimes, when your social worker and family
worker come to see you at home or school,
they may do some direct work with you. This
means doing some activities together. This way
we can gather your thoughts, feelings and
wishes. We loves to hear all about what you
enjoy and helping you if you are worried or
upset about anything.

@@ KN &

Care package of outreach support

Some children have a care package of outreach
support. Depending on the young person’s needs this
may involve the child spending 1:1 time out in the
community with their outreach support worker or
they could go to an activity-based centre to be
alongside other young people. Care packages are
tailored to children and young people’s needs to
ensure they receive support which will help them
have enjoyment, thrive, and develop social,
emotional and life skills.

Above is the lovely Nate who is open to our service.
Nate has a care package of direct payments and
thoroughly enjoys going out with his workers Kate
and Nichola. Nate has enjoyed a trip to Blackpool, the
beach and helping look after Kate’s horse, plus many
other experiences.

Nate loves to go out with his workers and sits at the
front window waiting excitedly for them to arrive.

Kayla has a care package
of outreach support
through reach out care.
Kayla enjoyed a trip to St
James’ football stadium-
here's what Kayla has to
say - “I got to go and visit
St James Park —my
favourite football team”.

County Council




AR = (5] (W)

children with disabilities team

Ethos- We aim for children to be safe, happy and
provide opportunities for inclusion and equality on an
individual need basis.

Vision-to ensure children have access to the same
opportunities as their peers where they feel happy
and can build on their life skills to prepare for
adulthood.

-

‘ Thank you for taking time to read our leaflet.
——— e




Unaccompanied Asylum Seeking Children

Within Durham we have a growing population of unaccompanied asylum-seeking children
(UASC). Some young people have experienced human trafficking and exploitation during
their travel to Durham and we need to support them to recover and to thrive in our
communities.

As a pilot we have established a dedicated team to help them do so and for many we have
been able to aid them through sport to build confidence and communication with each
other and with staff. They meet regularly to play football and to cook and share food.
These young people are some of the most vulnerable we have in our child looked after
population.

We have dedicated Care Leavers Hubs with legal aid, support and advice on hand.

We hosted an alternative Christmas dinner for our unaccompanied asylum seeking young
people at Refuse café in Chester le street — this was a wonderful event of friendship and
food for our young people and those that support them. The young people cooked a meal
at the Sherburn hub too!

Durhani Sy=

County Council &}




Fostering Services

Fostering services in Durham continue to provide family-based care of a high quality to
children who cannot safely live at home. In Durham we have 386 fostering homes. 225 of
these are with connected person foster carers and the remainder with carers who do not
know the children but are available to offer a loving home for as long as required. This is
an increase of Friends and Family carers by 50% from our previous year.

To recognise the work our foster carers do we have changed the way that we pay fostering
fees with the introduction of a skills to foster model. This resulted in every carer receiving
an increase in payments. We continue to look at ways in which we can improve our
support to foster carers in Durham.

They are the engine of children’s social care and the care they provide supports children to
recover form harms suffered, and aids them to return to live with their families or move into
their adult lives when they are ready to do so.

We have a staying put scheme that makes sure that young people move from their
fostering homes when they are ready to do so and that this isn’t because of their age
alone. If a young person and their foster carer agree, the young person can continue to
stay with their foster carers when they turn 18, even though they become a care leaver.
This may be something a young person wants to do because they want support while they
finish their education, or they might just want more time to make the transition to
independence. They can stay with their foster carer until they are 21.

Mockingbird Family Model

We have successfully launched three mocking bird fostering constellations. This means
that we have an experienced foster carer working with a group of other foster carers to
make an extended fostering family. This helps the children and the adults when things are
hard. They have the support of each other, and they have the ability to have sleep overs to
give each other space if that's what is needed. They share fun events and build the
relationships of an extended family.

This has been an area of support with a focus on children with disabilities and those who
are moving out of a children’s home setting back into foster care.

We have a fourth hub due to be launched in the coming months and will progress with this
model of fostering to support foster carers to care for children who might otherwise not be
able to manage in a family-based care setting.

County Council \&




Fostering recruitment

We need lots more foster carers to make sure that when a child or young person needs a
foster carer, we can choose the right one to meet their needs. To help us do this we have
had a number of targeted campaigns take place across the year to increase the number of
foster carers. Last year we launched our first TV advert.

We have joined the North East 12 Local Authorities to form the Foster North East
Pathfinder Project. This is a Government pilot to support all Local Authorities to come
together with a joint marketing approach to ‘foster for your Local Authority’. This has been
a positive partnership and is proposed to continue for a second year.

Did you know . . ..

We have a group called ‘M8s’ that provides support for foster carers own children, if they
have them. This gives an opportunity for the young people to meet others whose parents
are foster carers, and to have fun whilst sharing their experiences.

There are regular support groups and annual consultations. We have received positive
feedback from our carers which we use to shape service developments.

Mind of My Own App

To ensure children’s voices are at the centre of what we do, we have several ways that we
engage with them and in addition to our direct work, all young people are supported to
access the Mind of My Own app. This enables young people to share their views,
successes and any challenges with their social workers ahead of their reviews. The app
also allows young people to contact their social worker if they have any worries or queries
about anything at any time. Young people, for whom English is not their first language,
can use the app in their own language, which are translated and sent to their workers.

¥ “&0\

\)

ok Ny OWN

Foster Care Training

Young people support our foster carer training both for new foster carers and for those
who have fostered for a while and are refreshing their training. This allows the training to
be ‘real’ and for the young people to help foster carers understand how it feels from their
perspective to be cared for in a fostering home.

Foster Care awards

These awards recognise the outstanding achievements of foster carers, as well as their
families who have welcomed children and young people into their homes and lives.

Last year we hosted the Foster Care awards at the Gala Theatre, Durham which was
really successful but could only have limited numbers in actual attendance. This year we
are planning an event to include as many foster carers as we can.

Durhanii

County Council \&




Children’s Homes

We currently have eleven registered Children’s Homes across the County offering
residential care to children and young people. This could be support and care for young
people who cannot live at home, or short respite breaks when children and young people
with disabilities need to have a little time away from their family or carer.

There have been many developments across the service, including strengthening the
existing management teams, with Deputy Managers in post and also a “grow your own”
approach to recruit new workers with no experience of residential care.

During 2023 we opened a new home and we purchased two new buildings which we will
open as homes during 2024. Furthermore, we secured some ongoing capital investment to
ensure all our homes continue to be updated, are homely and fit for purpose.

Information about Aycliffe Secure Centre is in included in the ASC section.

Ofsted inspections in our residential children’s homes

Children’s home The effectiveness of How well children and Overall experiences and

leaders and managers young people are helped progress of children and
and protected young people

Park House Good Good Good

New Lea house Good Good Good

Orchard house Outstanding Good Good

33 Newton drive Good Good Good

54 Blackgate East Good Good Good

Moorside Good Good Good

West Rainton Good Good Good

High Etherley Good Good Good

The Manse Good Good Good

Hickstead Requires Improvement Requires Improvement Requires Improvement

Hudson house Not Inspected Not Inspected Not Inspected

Sufficiency

A number of new children’s homes are being developed to ensure that as many children
as possible live within County Durham and are able to maintain links with their schools,
friends, families and hobbies. The new homes are different sizes (ranging from 1 to 4
places) so that children and young people with more complex needs can be cared for. An
Edge of Care home is also being planned; this will offer short breaks and wider support to
young people and their families to help them to remain living at home.

County Council




Staying Close

This is similar to the staying put principles, when young people leave our children’s homes
they may still need the support of familiar people to help them settle and feel safe in their
adult living arrangements, so we will look for accommodation options that are close to their
former children’s home so that they are able to pop in for advice and support, or to use
laundry facilities, have a meal etc when they need to.

NYAS
All children in care have access to independent advocacy services through the National
Youth Advocacy Service.

oo
@
ynational youth
advocacy service

Regulation 44 / elected members

Some of our elected members attend the Regulation 44 inspection visits alongside the
NYAS inspectors on a quarterly basis (more information on Req 44 visits can be found
here). Posters of the inspectors are on display in the home, so young people know who is
visiting, and can identify them easily:

Framwellgate Moor, Elderhirst, Maple House, ASC Coxhoe
Durham Meadowfield Clir Stacey Deinali Hudson House, Coxhoe
Cllr Mamie Simmons Cllr Ken Robson Clir Chris Varty

e

’
-

West Rainton High Etherley New Lea House, Orchard House, Sacriston
Cllr Samantha Stanley The Manse, Coxhoe
Clir Lesley Mavin Townsend Cllr Joyce Charlton Clir Cathy Hunt

1

-, /
Moorside, Hickstead, Park House,

Spennymoor Newton Aycliffe Sherburn
Clir Shirley Quinn Clir Ken Robson Clir Chris Varty

e

Durhanm:®

County Council



https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2015/541/regulation/44/made
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2015/541/regulation/44/made

Supporting Solutions Service

The Supporting Solutions Service (SSS) sits within Countywide Specialist Services, it is an
umbrella term that captures the work of a number of services: Edge of Care (7+), Family
Group Conference, ERASE: Missing and Exploitation and the Rapid Response Service.

Edge of Care

Edge of Care (EoC) will offer additional support when children or young people aged 7-17
are at risk of becoming a child in care, or where they are currently a child in care and we
are wanting to support their return home.

The service offers support to the child/young person and their family to rebuild
relationships and support them to stay together. There may also be times where we
support the child/young person and their long-term foster carers where this relationship
has become strained, so that there is a greater chance of the child/young person being
able to remain with their carer.

During 2023 — 24 we saw an increase in the number of children young people and families
who received support from Edge of Care to 302 (previous year 182) this is a 27%
increase:

e 1302 young people received support from the SSS. 228 of these young people (171
age 11+ and 57 age 7+) were referred in 2023/24, whilst the other 74 (51 age 11+
and 23 age 7+) had been referred prior to this

e 244 young people who received support from SSS were able to remain in the care
of their family

e 3 young people were able to return to the care of their family after a period in care

e 15 young people were supported to remain in their long-term placement.

Overall, 87% of young people who accessed support in 2023/24 are either at home / with
extended family or have remained in their long term placement. This is an increase of 4%
compared to the previous year.

Access to an out of hours bed is also available for one night where there is a crisis
situation. During 2023-24, the crisis bed at The Nest was used on 69 occasions, for a total
of 77 nights.

Family Group Conference Team

The Family Group Conference (FGC) Team are a dedicated service that works with
families to support them to look for solutions that will work for them and their children with
the focus of keeping children safe.

The team works from the viewpoint that families understand themselves best and they
hold the solutions, this is done in partnership with the family, using their unique strengths,
and considering their culture and values, so that we can create lasting plans to keep
children safe, well and connected to their family.




We can hold a Family Group Conference for any child/young person who is open to
Children’s Social Care. During 2023-24, 149 initial Family Group Conferences were
completed, this equates to 248 children / young people.

Overall:
e 64% of FGCs (158 children) resulted in the child/young person being in the care of
their parents or extended family
e 3.5% (9 children) had a plan to return to the care of parents / family
e 29% (72 children) were waiting for outcome of court / assessment alongside FGC
plan
e 3.5% (9 children) remained Children in our Care (CiC).

Sustained Outcomes for FGCs - of the FGCs completed within 2022-23, there were 174
children and young people who were living with parents, family or extended network as a
result of initial FGC. Of these 12 — 24 months on:

e 164 remain with parents, family or extended network
e 9 of these children and young people are CiC with parents
e 7 of these children and young people are CiC with family members.

Therefore, 96.5% of children and young people who were in the care of their family at the
initial FGC remain there.

Out of 47 children and young people waiting for outcome of court / assessments following
FGC:

e 35 are now living with parents, family or extended network, this includes 6 young
people who are with parents / extended family network as children looked after.
This is 74% of the 47 young people who are cared for by family members.

e 5 young people were new entries into care

e 3 were adopted

e 3remained a CiC

e 1 baby very sadly was stillborn.

Out of the 19 children and young people who were CiC and returned to the care of either
parents, family or extended network:

¢ 18 have remained with parents / family members (2 as children looked after)
e 1 young person is now looked after in residential care.

This means 95% of the 19 young people have had a successful return to the care of their
family.

Durhanmii:

County Council \&




Lifelong Links

The FGC Team have been successful in securing DfE funding until the end of March 2025
to deliver a Lifelong Links Programme. Lifelong Links aims to build lasting relationships for
young people in our care in Durham.

The intention is to establish lost links, re-enforce existing relationships or form new
connections for the young person, so that they develop a strong, stable, and consistent
network of support as they leave care. These can be people that the young person knows
well but have not seen in a while (like a previous foster carer, a teacher or neighbour), people
that they identify as having been supportive in their lives and want to have a long-lasting
support relationship with, family members that they have lost contact with or even a family
member that have not met yet. They may also benefit from making connections with local
community groups that can offer them support.

In Durham we hope to explore Lifelong Links with all children who are looked after, aged 15
¥, as part of their pathway plan.

The Lifelong Links programme has commenced with 3 young people, and we continue to
work with Social Workers and IRO’s to continue to identify young people who would benefit
from this service.

The programme has been promoted at team meetings and at HoS briefing, promotional
materials for young people and professionals has been developed and information is also
to be shared on DCC and DSCP websites. There is a steering group in place to monitor
development and progress of the programme.

ERASE: Child Exploitation and Missing

ERASE is our specialist child exploitation team and is made up of practitioners from the
police and children’s services. Where a social worker has worries about a child/young
person being exploited, they complete the Child Exploitation Matrix to help understand the
level of risk.

Where a child is high risk of exploitation or missing, the Children Services Child Exploitation
workers work directly with them and their parents/carers to support them to understand what
is happening and how to keep the child/young person safe. We also work with other
practitioners to help educate them about child exploitation and how they can best support
the child/young person and their family.

When working with children/young people who are being exploited, we are careful to use
language that does not blame children or young people for what is happening to them. We
always explore what it is that the adults around the child/young person are doing that is
harmful to them.

Children who are identified as risk of being exploited are discussed at a multi agency
meeting (CEVT) and where there is evidence they are being exploited they are discussed
at the child exploitation group (CEG). The ERASE child exploitation team take referrals via
CEVT.




Child Exploitation

During 2023-24, CEVT reviewed 392 referrals, of which 87 were assessed as High Risk,
252 were medium risk and 53 were low risk. More children were referred due to criminal
exploitation than sexual exploitation, which is different to last year. Only 4 children referred
were assessed to be at risk of both Criminal and Sexual Exploitation.

The Erase child exploitation workers supported 84 (increase of 56% on last year) young
people who were identified as high risk of child criminal exploitation (CCE) or child sexual
exploitation (CSE).

When reviewed in April 2024 findings were:

e 46% of those young people who were identified as being at high risk of CSE, the
risk was reduced to low through the intervention provided

e 18% had a reduced risk level of medium

e 36% which equates to 10 young people remain high risk, however 8 of these were
allocated in the latter half of the year (during Q3 and Q4).

Of those young people who were reviewed as high risk of CCE between April 2023 and
March 2024:

e 38% of those now have a reduced risk level of low

e 15% have now reduced to medium

e 47% remain high risk. 16 of the 26 young people who remain high were allocated
Q3 and Q4.

It must be considered that those young people reviewed as high risk of Child Exploitation
in Q4 (Jan — March 24) are still actively being worked with to reduce their risk of
exploitation.

Re-referrals: there have been 377 referrals reviewed as High Risk of exploitation, of these,
44 have come back through CEVT and reviewed as high risk meaning the re-referral rate
is 11.7%. (2018-present day).

Missing

During 2023-24, there was a total of 2195 children and young people missing episodes,
which equates to 694 children and young people. This is an increase of 11% of young
people going missing and an increase of 11% of the number of missing episodes to the
previous year. Of the 694 children, 160 of these were looked after, which equates to 1142
missing episodes.

Return Home Interviews (RHI): Guidance states a young person should be offered an
independent RHI, which should be completed within 72 hrs of their return:

e 99% of return to homes interviews were offered

e 89% took place, with 55% of these taking place within 72 hours.

Durhani ﬁ.‘

/,

County Council

a

B3

&9



Child in Need: During 2023 — 24, of the 694 children, 208 were open on a child in need
plan, this equates to 435 missing episodes:

e 95% of these were offered a return to home interview

e 919% accepting and taking place, and of these 52% happening within 72 hours.

Child Protection: During 2023 — 24, of the 694 children, 28 young people were subject to a
child protection plan, this equates to 66 missing episodes:

e 97% of these were offered a return to home interview

e 98% were completed , with 57% taking place within 72 hours.

Overall, we have continued to see that the majority (77%) of children who go missing at
missing from their home (parents) with children in care making up 23%. However with
repeat missing episodes we continue to see children in care having repeat episodes (52%)
compared to children at home (48%).

Rapid Response Service

The Rapid Response Service (RRS) operates within Durham Children’s Services and are
an intensive support team who work with young people aged 12 to 18, with significant
mental health issues, who have been identified as being at risk of hospital admission due
to their mental ill-health and concerns in presenting behaviours.

When a young person is in transition to Adult Services, RRS can remain involved to
support them for a period of 6 months.

The service was co-produced in response to feedback from parents/ carers and young
people with lived experience, who said they wanted a different approach that wasn’t
clinical or involved hospitals or police stations.

The team is made up of a Team Manager, and 5 Rapid Response Case Workers, due to
the intensive offer caseloads are capped with the team holding a max of 25 young people
at any one time.

The RRS staff work intensively to prevent hospital admissions, and in the instance of an
admission having already taken place, will work with young people and their families/
carers to support a safe discharge. This is to prepare them for discharge and support them
to prevent future admissions.

The RRS team provide bespoke intensive support packages for young people. These are
tailored to the individual needs of the young people and their parents/carers. We work very
closely with colleagues from the CAMHS (Child and Adolescent Mental Health Service)
Crisis Team, CAMHS IHT Team (Intensive Home Treatment Team), The Eating Disorders
Team and the Rollercoaster Support Group.

The RRS is a 7 day service operating between the hours of 8am to 8pm, Monday to
Fridays and 9am to 5pm duty support Saturday and Sundays.




During 2023-2024 RRS started support to 34 young people and we ended our involvement
with 32 young people. RRS are currently working with 7 Children in our Care, and over the
last year a further 16 young people in our care have been successfully supported.

RRS offers 1:1 support to children and young people, and support to care staff to help
build resilience through developing strategies to manage the young persons presentations.
They also offer advice and guidance.

Referrals to RRS can come from the child’s Social Worker where they have significant
worries around young people they support, through the Dynamic Support Register,
CAMHS crisis and Intensive Home treatment teams.

The table below shows the number of admissions (year by year) of young people from
County Durham to mental health hospital (detained under all relevant mental health act
legislation) and the reduction since RRS became operational in 2021.

Year No. of Young People admitted to Mental Health Hospital:
2019/2020 34
2020/2021 34
2021/2022 33
2022/2023 24
2023/2024 13

You can see the decline in admissions since the RRS inception in 2021.
RRS outcomes:
e RRS had only 1 young person referred for further support during this period.
e RRS on average supports young people for 40 weeks.
e No young people have required inpatient support after RRS have ended support pre
18 years old.

In relation to further developments, RRS has extended its offer of support to Ealy Help
colleagues with young people with significant worries and have supported 2 young people.

Support sessions are offered to colleagues with advice and strategies with young people
who are not allocated to the service. During this period, we have completed 32 sessions to
individual workers, team meetings and Development days.

RRS are finalising a service level agreement with Darlington to provide commissioned
support for up to 2 young people. We hope to expand this support to more young people
from this authority.

Durhan: ﬁ

County Council \&




Adoption

Adopt Coast to Coast was established as the Regional Adoption Agency (RAA), on
1 April 2021, as a go to agency for those interested in adoption across the North East.

Adopt Coast to Coast is a partnership RAA, and is made up of the following two partners
(spokes):
e Durham County Council

e Together for Children who deliver children's services on behalf of Sunderland City
Council

adopt

Coast to Coast

Adopt Coast to Coast continues to work to embed models of early permanence and to
develop the adoption support offer. Since launching, the RAA has received almost 900
enquiries from people considering adoption.

Eleven online information sessions are held each year by Durham County Council and
Together for Children team members. These sessions help to give people a better
understanding of adoption in the early stages of their adoption journeys and it helps them
to decide if adoption is right for them.

The information sessions are not mandatory, however the three day information,
counselling and preparation course training and one day therapeutic parenting course are.
These training sessions are delivered after an application to be assessed has been
accepted.

Durham

County Council X




Durham County Council Adoption Service
This has been a busy year for the adoption team in all areas with 115 enquiries received
from prospective adopters.

By the end of March 2024, 15 adoptive households were approved and 17 were in the
application or assessment process. 51 Adoption Orders have been granted for DCC
children within this period.

Adoption Panel has been held 22 times in the same period. Panel is held fortnightly, and
additional panels held when necessary to prevent delays for children. One of the 22 panels
held was an additional panel. 40 matches for children/sibling groups with adopters and 15
adopter approvals were considered at these panels.

Early Permanence continues to be a key priority, as it allows children to experience a
reduced number of care givers and home moves allowing for stronger attachments to be
formed much sooner. In this period 7 children have been placed via Early Permanence.
Within the Adoption Service there have been 237 children supported through an
assessment of support needs. These assessments all led to applications being made to
the Adoption Support Fund for adoption related therapeutic services.

Here’'s what one adopter had to say about their adoption experience:

“The process was good — more enjoyable than we expected. Our social worker at the time
was really reassuring and helpful. They never raised expectations and were open and
honest throughout the process. We also took part in training where we made some really
good friends who had similar experiences to us. When we were eventually told that we can
be parents, it was like a dream come true.”

Durhan:

County Council ;




Care Leavers

The care leavers service in Durham works with young people from the age of 16 when a
young persons advisor is appointed to establish a relationship with a young person and
assist the social worker in the development of the pathway plan into adult life.

The Durham County Council Strategy for Children in Care and Care Leavers has been
developed, covering January 2022 to December 2024. It outlines our vision, and areas for
action. The strategy has a strong focus on learning from those who are care experienced
to drive forward practice improvements in County Durham and help our young people to
build strong relationships that will endure.

Local Offer to Care Leavers
The Local Offer has been published on our website and gives details of how DCC will
support young people with:

e Options about where to live

e Helping with money, benefits, and financial advice

e Looking after their health (physical, mental, and sexual); drug, alcohol and smoking

cessation support; support about relationships.
e Education, Employment & Training

Are you a care leaver ?
Are you 16 - 25?
Our Local Offer is for you

Find out more about our Local Offer for care leavers

ADVlCE
SUPPORT
HELP
1
l [ . = -
Support for you Where can | live? Education, training Looking after yourself

and employment

Durham compares well to other areas and has strengthened its local offer further with the
support of the regional partners. This includes:

e Strengthening our corporate commitment to our care leavers

e Making sure our young people have a variety of suitable accommodation options.

County Council \§&




We will include an update in next year’s annual report, but some of the key things in the
local offer are:

e Improving the quality of pathway plans

e Helping prepare our young people for adulthood

e Improved coproduction opportunities for any development work

Supported lodgings

The supported lodgings team now sits within the fostering service. This helps the
supported lodging carers receive support and training. This has supported provided to feel
part of the service and community. There has been a joint Fostering and Supported
Lodging award night with special recognition for long term service and awards for a
provider as a 30 year service. This has also strengthened communication and support
groups. A joint approach to recruitment has been applied with raising the profile of
supported lodgings within our marketing and recruitment of foster carers. We have been
successful in keeping retired foster carers to move to a natural route as supporting lodging
providers.

Supported lodgings provides a safe, supportive and friendly home environment for young
people, aged between 16 and 25 years old, who are leaving care and do not want to live
on their own. Supported lodgings providers give young people a key to their home, their
own room, access to a bathroom, kitchen, and laundry facilities.

Each young person is different, but many need practical support and help with things like
learning to cook, doing laundry, budgeting, attending appointments, or even to help them
find a job, or access education and training.

Supported lodgings can be short term, or for up to two years, and in Durham we have
several supported lodgings providers and always seek to recruit more.

Care Leavers hub

The first care leavers hub was officially launched on 28 February 2022, by our care
leavers. The hub is a safe space to engage with services and each other, and just a
welcoming place to hang out, get warm, clean and fed. A programme of events has been
developed for the hub for the year ahead by young people, including a job club, young
parents group and session with arts and crafts and wellbeing groups.

Durhanmii:

County Council \&




The second Care Leaver Hub was launched November 2023 in Stanley with access for all
care leavers and joint working with the Families Hub for groups for young parents, access
to first aid course and a dedications legal aid support for UASC. The Staying Close Project
operates form this Hub. You can see our video on Facebook:
https://www.facebook.com/reel/865108075617434

One of the young people involved said.

“Having a place, we can go to, get help and feel safe, whilst joining in on activities means
the world to us. We’d be keen to welcome everybody to our hub and look forward to
making it a place which will really benefit us”.

There are plans to develop a further hub in the next year and work to progress this has
begun. It is hoped that the care leaver service will operate entirely from hubs allowing
office space as well as drop-in rooms and activity rooms for planned groups to take place.
Young people are working to develop this model and it is hoped these will be managed by
the care leaver group.

Here are some pictures from our care leavers Christmas lunch:

We had a Christmas Care Leavers Appeal ‘Show u Care Bags’ where we received at least
60 donations. The donations went to young people, and the feedback has been incredible,
one young person wanted to open theirs with their Young Persons Advisor like it was
Christmas morning and was overjoyed with the kindness. Another young person put theirs
under their tree to open on for Christmas day as they were the only gifts they would be
getting.

County Council \&



https://www.facebook.com/reel/865108075617434

At the young parents’ party, we gave all young people a gift bag from their child for
Christmas. It was very emotional to see their faces and the joy that they had been thought
off as a parent. We received lots of donations of toys from the Angel Trust so young
people took a sack full of gifts away for their children for Christmas, these were delivered
by our very own Santa!

Should you need further information or wish to get involved in supporting our Care Leavers
hubs, contact us by email careleavers@durham.gov.uk or phone 03000 262271.

Drive project

The project supports young people by providing driving lessons, up to the value of £500.
The project pays for one lesson, the young person pays for the next lesson, and so on
then the project pays for the first theory test and one practical test. This is available for
care experienced young people aged 17+ and care leavers up to the age of 21 (25 if in full
time education).

From April 2023 to March 2024
e 6 young people received £500
e 10 young people passed their theory driving test
e 3 young people passed their practical driving test

E————————
" "
[ 4 o
i———
Midwifery offer to care experienced young people
Discussions continue with community midwives regarding the support on offer to care

experienced young people who are parents, and to consider what can be done to make
this offer better.

Although we don’t currently have a specific pathway of enhanced support for care
experienced young people, the care is personalised wherever possible to meet their
needs.

This vulnerable cohort of women are included within the Enhanced Parenting Support
Pathway (EPSP):

e Young Parents, under the age of 19 years who are unsupported / isolated
e Either parent/carer of the unborn child(ren) are currently a child looked after under
the care of the Local Authority or identified as a care leaver

To continue to build trusted relationships, specific sessions continue to be delivered from
the care leavers hub for care experienced parents and health professionals together.

Durhanmii:

County Council \&



mailto:careleavers@durham.gov.uk

Health

It is the responsibility of Durham County Council, North East and North Cumbria (NENC)
Integrated Care Board (ICB) and commissioned health services to identify and address
the unmet health needs of children who are in our care.

Improving the health outcomes for all care experienced young people remains a key
priority and is included in the NENC ICB Joint Forward Plan. The 5 priority areas are:

e Reverse the trend in statutory health care for children in care

e Well-coordinated, targeted, proactive and preventative health provision to ensure

equitable access to mental health and physical health care

e Deliver the NENC ICB commitments in the Care Leavers Covenant

e Integrated care pathway for children in care

e Align support to care leavers up to the age of 25 years

The goal is for all children in our care to experience improved health and wellbeing and
have an awareness on how their long-term health needs can be addressed as they
become adults.

Meeting the health needs of children and young people in our care requires a clear focus
on easier access to services although commissioning can be complex with access to
services potentially confounded by placement moves, for example, out of area
placements. We also need to be assured of the competencies of the wider health services
in understanding our young people, which links to training and guidance.

Some areas of unwarranted variation are:

e Access to timely and quality health services regardless of where children are living in
the United Kingdom.

e The health commissioning pathways to meet the statutory duties for all children in our
care are not fully understood and are complex, particularly impacting on children living
out of area, UASC and children on remand.

NENC ICB commissioning of NHS health provision for children in our care in
Durham

County Durham and Darlington Foundation Trust (CDDFT)

NENC ICB commission the Initial Health Assessment (IHA) provision from CDDFT
including medical services for children in our care and those with a plan for adoption. The
team includes a named doctor and experienced paediatricians who complete all IHAs and
adoption medicals for children in the Durham area.

There are two medical advisers involved in all stages of the adoption process for children
and adults. They also attend permanence panels and are responsible for providing
medical advice considering implications of the health of the adult in caring for a child.

County Council \&




CDDFT complete review Health Assessments (RHA) for Durham children living out of the
local authority boundary within a 20-mile radius and RHAs for children living within Durham
local authority boundary by other local authorities.

Harrogate and District Foundation Trust (HDFT)

HDFT 0-25 Service undertake RHAs for Durham children living within the Durham local
authority boundary. The Trust also support children living in local authority residential
children's homes. The compliance for HDFT's performance is monitored by Public Health
commissioners with oversight by the Designated Professionals.

Tees Esk and Wear Valley NHS Foundation Trust (TEWV)

Mental health services for children and young people are provided by Child and
Adolescent Mental Health Services (CAMHS) commissioned from Tees Esk and Wear
Valleys NHS Foundation Trust (TEWV). Durham County Council commission additional
therapeutic support for care experienced young people from Full Circle which is a
specialist integrated mental health team. Full Circle is a social work led team, made up of
Therapeutic Social Workers employed by the local authority and a Consultant Clinical
Psychologist and Clinical Nurse Specialist employed via TEWV; the team have links into
the local CAMHS.

Local authorities are required to use the Strengths and Difficulties Questionnaire (SDQ) to
assess the emotional wellbeing of individual children. The local authority collects
information from the completed questionnaires and informs Full Circle of all high scores.
Full Circle utilise a trauma informed approach to assist stability in young people’s living
arrangements by supporting the children’s foster carers and adopters, social workers,
residential staff, educational staff, and the child’s care team to support the child's recovery
from complex trauma and abuse. The team can support children placed in neighbouring
local authorities by working across geographical boundaries to ensure the child does not
suffer because of being placed outside Durham local authority boundary. Full Circle
provides a gateway to CAMHS if required for a child or young person in care.

The service specification for CAMHS specifically ensures that care experienced children
are not refused a service on the grounds of their living arrangements being short-term or
unplanned.

Primary Care

Primary Care providers are pivotal role in the identification of health needs of children and
young people as they enter or leave care. GPs often have prior knowledge of the
child/young person and their parent's medical histories which may impact on the child. It is
critical that the primary care health records are maintained and updated and are
transferred quickly if the child registers with a new GP practice, such as when they move
into another ICB area, leave care, or are adopted.

Durhann

County Council \&




GP practices should ensure timely access to a GP or other appropriate health professional
when care experienced young people require a consultation. Practices need to understand
who their care experienced young people are to offer timely access to appointments; this
is an area for continued improvement during 2024-25 and has been evidenced by a health
survey to understand the experiences of care leavers in relation to primary care.

The Designated and Named Professionals for children in our care deliver training sessions
to primary care outlining GP responsibilities towards care experienced young people.

Durham Children living out of the local authority boundary

Where a local authority arrange accommodation for a young person in another ICB area,
the originating ICB retains health commissioning responsibilities. When children live away
from their home authority there is a risk they do not receive the support and help they
need.

There are robust quality assurance processes including the audit of all health assessments
for children living out of the Durham area. Escalation processes are embedded between
County Durham and Darlington Foundation Trust (CDDFT) health team and the
Designated Nurse if difficulties in the completion or quality of health assessments and
access to health services are identified.

Statutory Health Assessments

Initial Health Assessments (IHAS)
It is a statutory requirement that IHAs should be completed by a registered medical
practitioner.

The IHA should result in a health plan, which is made available to the Independent
Reviewing Officer (IRO) in time for the first statutory review meeting 20 working days from
when the child came into care.

County Council \&




2023 - 24

Table 1: Initial Health Assessments (IHAs) 23-24 22-23
Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

Total children becoming Looked After
(excluding UASC)

Total children requiring an IHA 370 118 112 108

Total IHAs undertaken within statutory
timeframes (<20 working days)
Total % IHAs undertaken within
statutory timeframes (<20 working 65% 55% 50% 52%
days)

Number of IHAs undertaken by CDDFT 363 107 101 89

Number of IHAs undertaken within
statutory timeframes (<20 working 232 65 56 55
days)

% of IHAs undertaken within
statutory timeframes (<20 working 64% 60% 56% 62%
days)

Number of children offered IHA
appointment within CDDFT Timeframe
(<15 working days) of receipt of
paperwork.

% of children offered IHA appointment
within CDDFT Timeframe (<15 working 76% 79% 74% 88%
days) of receipt of paperwork.

389 121 112 110

239 65 56 56

1.1 Overall Compliance

275 88 75 78

1.2 CDDFT Compliance

Despite an overall improvement in the timely submission of completed paperwork and
consent forms from the local authority, there has still been a reduction in children receiving
an IHA within timescales; work is ongoing to improve this.

Currently, reporting on compliance focuses on the health assessment being undertaken
within 20 working days, not if the health plan is returned in time for the first Looked After
Review. The local authority provide the Trust with the date for the first review which gives
the Trust a date 'to work to' when arranging the IHA appointment. CODFT work with carers
to organise suitable appointment times to reduce non-attendance and cancellation of
appointments, although flexibility can be difficult as clinic appointments fill up quickly.

Durhan: XU

County Council \&

U8R
(13

fist



Review Health Assessments (RHAS)

RHAs may be carried out by a registered nurse / midwife and the review of the child’s
health plan must happen at least once every six months before a child’s fifth birthday and
at least once every 12 months after the child’s fifth birthday.

2023 - 24

Table 2: Review Health Assessments (RHAs) 2023-2024 2022 - 23
Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

TOTAL number of RHAs due? 996 273 260 274
g3 -
£ = T'otal number completed within 887 229 213 226
= E_ timescales
£
S & Total number completed out of 109 a0 28 28
O = timescales
T A - .
o : Total number remaining outstanding - 4 19 7
8 -

% compliance within timescales 89% 84% 82% 82%

1This total number excludes children and young people who ceased to be looked after prior to RHA, those who had an adoption
medical instead of an RHA and those young people old enough to decline an RHA

Durham &2

=

County Council s,gaagr




Unaccompanied Asylum-Seeking Children

Durham has seen an increasing number of children and young people seeking asylum
who are placed within the local authority boundaries. The needs of unaccompanied
asylum-seeking children will remain a health priority for 2024-25.

2023 - 24
Table 3: UASC 2023 - 2024 2022 - 23
Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4
Total number of UASC coming into care 109 5 2 13
in County Durham
Total number of UASC requiring an IHA 2 16 11
Number of UASC requiring IHA by
2 4
CDDFT 35 6
Paperwork received within 5 working
- 4 2 1 1
1 | days from start of care (LA indicator)
IHA completed within 20 working days
- 6 1 0 1
of start of care (statutory indicator)
First appointment offered within 20 5 2 0 1

working days of start of care.

First appointment offered within 15
working days of receiving correct and 21 n/a 2 1
complete paperwork (CDDFT indicator)
Number of UASC requiring IHA by OOA
Health Provider

Paperwork received within 5 working
days from commencement of care 4 n/a 1 1
(LA indicator)

IHA completed within 20 working days
of commencement of care 2 n/a 1 0
(statutory indicator)

Number of UASC with IHA completed by

15 0 7 6

Kent 11 3 4 1

Number of UASC awaiting confirmation a 1 a 0
. of IHA completed by Kent

Number of UASC who did not attend / 2 0 1 0

were not brought to appointment

Number of appointments for UASC 7 0 0 0

cancelled / re-arranged

An IHA appointment for an unaccompanied young person requires a double appointment;
to minimise cancellations or non-attendance. CDDFT admin team contact the carer and
social worker before an appointment is booked to ensure the date is convenient, does not
coincide with other commitments and to confirm with the social worker that an interpreter is
available. Delays can occur where NHS numbers are not available for unaccompanied
young people and processes are being considered that will allow the appointment process
to move forward while awaiting allocation; however, instances of paperwork being received
for UASC without an NHS number is decreasing.

Durham!’

County Council




The Designated Doctor for Children in our Care is working with colleagues on several
pathways to streamline access to services for unaccompanied young people. This
includes:

e Working with genito-urinary medicine (GUM) to create a joint pathway for blood borne
virus (BBV) screening in those young people felt to be at increased risk of disease.

e Creation of patient and carer leaflets explaining the risk of BBVs and the need for
testing, alongside the development of written consent forms that can be completed by
carers, social workers, and young people.

e Collaborative working with the local authority UASC team and monthly meetings to
identify any concerns early and achieve optimal health outcomes.

Care Leavers

Health professionals and social workers work closely to ensure there are suitable transition
arrangements in place so that we continue to meet a young person's health needs. They
ensure that care leavers have, or know how to obtain, information about their medical
history and what health services, advice and support are available locally to meet their
ongoing and future needs. This information is often contained within a 'Health Summary'
document that has been reviewed and updated by colleagues in CDDFT to replace the
'Health Passport'. Local authority colleagues can request a Health Summary from CDDFT
for all young people six months prior to leaving care; or at a pathway planning meeting
when the young person turns 16.

The monitoring of Health Summaries has been a priority for 2023-24 and will continue to
be monitored in 2023-24.

LOCAL HEALTH INDICATORS

Dental Health

All care experienced children and young people are supported to register with a local
dentist and practitioners completing the health assessment must record the dental practice
and dates of appointments attended. A dental recovery plan approved by the ICB will
support the children in our care and provide direct access to practices; this is still in
development.

Immunisations
It is a priority to ensure all children and young people in our care are brought in line with
the UKs national immunisation schedule.

Health Development Checks

Health Developments Checks are completed for all children aged under 5 years. A child is
considered up to date if child health surveillance or child health promotion checks have
taken place by 31 March, even if they took place later than they should have done.

County Council \&




Priorities for Health moving forward include:

Priority 1: Improving access to a local dentist to increase compliance for dental health
assessments for children in our care in Durham

Priority 2: Ensuring the health needs of children from County Durham who are living out
of area are met by improving compliance of Out of Area (OOA) health assessments within
statutory timeframes.

Priority 3: To understand the number of children in our care accessing CAMHS services
and to have assurance that their health needs are fully met.

Priority 4: To increase the compliance of primary care GP information to inform IHAs and
RHAs, a digital solution to improve the quality of GP information has been developed and
implemented.

Priority 5: Every care experienced young person should be offered a health summary to
understand their health history.

Priority 6: To ensure that unaccompanied asylum-seeking children have access to
services and support to meet their health needs.

Priority 7: To understand the needs of children who are compulsorily accommodated the
designated professionals will work with the local authority and NHS England colleagues
who are responsible for Health Justice, to ensure the needs of children in our care who are
accommodated are being met.




Full Circle Therapeutic Services

The Full Circle Therapeutic Service is an established

Full CITC_'e specialist, integrated therapeutic service for children who
Therapeutic Serwces

are dedicated to working with care experienced young
people. The Full Circle is part of Durham County Council
and provide support to children and young people (and their
families and carers), where the children have complex

Lo E AT E i N backgrounds and negative childhood experiences which are
"oe B, L et impacting in the here and now.

The Full Circle is a social work team made up of therapeutically trained social workers
employed by the Local Authority. They also have a Consultant Clinical Psychologist,
Clinical Psychologist and Clinical Nurse Specialist, who are employed via and have links
with the local Child and Adolescent Mental Health Services (CAMHS) service within Tees,
Esk and Wear Valleys NHS Foundation Trust.

The Full Circle utilise a trauma and attachment informed approach to promote healing and
assist placement stability by supporting the children’s foster carers and adopters, social
workers, residential staff, education staff and the child’s care team to support the child's
healing from complex trauma and abuse.

This includes providing training on trauma and therapeutic parenting approaches to foster
carers, adopters, relative carers and social workers and also includes a package of
support including training, group and clinical supervisions to residential staff of our Durham
children’s homes via our Clinical Psychologists. The Full Circle work closely with the
Children in our Care Team and Care Leavers Teams providing support to their newly
appointed emotional wellbeing worker and continue to provide clinical supervisions to
Supporting Solutions Staff and Future Hope practitioners (formerly Pause).

Although primarily an in-house provision for Durham County Council, therapeutic support
from the Full Circle can be commissioned by other local authorities who have children
placed in our area, to extend the offer to children living in Durham. Additionally, The Full
Circle also deliver a Trauma Informed Approaches training six times a year via Durham
Safeguarding Children Partnership (DSCP). Training is offered to all to Partner Agencies
and those associated with the Durham Safeguarding Children Partnership including all
Early Years Providers, Voluntary and Charitable Organisations.

Non-Partners, Private and for-profit organisations who do not come into these categories
are charged. The income from this goes back into children’s services to support service
provision.

County Council \&




Virtual School

As of July 2023, there were 766 Durham children in our care of statutory school age:

48% primary / 52% secondary.

e 77.7% in County Durham schools / 22.3% in out of County schools, which is an
increase of 2.7% from the previous year.

e School attendance for the whole children in our care cohort was 91.5%, 0.5% lower
than the previous year.

e Suspensions remain low at 5% (40 children), with one permanent exclusion.

e 53% had an identified special educational need (SEN), which is in line with the
previous year.
o 22% are supported by an Education Health and Care Plan (EHCP).
o 31% had a school SEN Support Plan, an increase of 2% from previous year
o Social, emotional and mental health needs (SEMH) were the main need for
35% of primary aged children, an increase of 4% and 55% of secondary
aged children, in line with last year.

The Virtual School are proactive with SEN to ensure young people are known, and
that interventions are available for schools to access as early as possible. If a child
with an EHCP is moved out of the Local Authority area to have their care needs
met, Durham are no longer able to retain the plan for that child as per the SEND
Code of Practice. The Plan must move out to the Local Authority in which the child
resides within 15 days. We are finding this brings additional challenges for Durham
Virtual School. In Durham, every child who is in our care who has an EHCP now
has an identified SEND Caseworker as well as their PEP Caseworker.

e For 2022/23 examinations results were roughly in line with those in 2019, pre Covid.
A significant number of the reporting Year 11 cohort had SEND (29%) and had an
EHCP. We continue to monitor the education pathways to ensure they are
accessing an appropriate curriculum. Year 11 have the additional support of the
Progression and Learning Team and DurhamWorks to support them into Post 16.
One area which has remained consistent is our young people achieving Maths and
English at grade 9 — 5, 9% of the cohort achieved this,1% lower than last year.

e For 2022/23 children did sit their Key Stage 1 and 2 SAT’s, outcomes this year are
below those achieved in 2019 for Durham children, this is still in part due to the
disrupted learning experience of this cohort. Maths and writing are above the
outcomes for 2019 for both KS1 and 2, however we have seen a dip in reading.
This is an area to address in PEP meetings. We continue to support reading
through the provision of the Curious Kids Reading packs and access to Fiction
Express for Years 1 through to Year 8.

Durhann =

County Council "'




Virtual School Sub group

The Corporate Parenting Panel’s vice chair, Cllr Michelle Walton chairs this group and
provides challenge to the Virtual School. They have an oversight of the support offered to
children in our care of Statutory School Age and an understanding of the additional work
focusing on Early Years and Post 16. As the role of the Virtual Head develops to have
oversight of all children with a social worker, Care Leavers and Kinship Carers the sub
group are kept well informed of the progress.

Education Fun Fund

The Virtual School transferred £5,000 Pupil Premium Plus (PP+) money to the CICC for an
Education Fun Fund project, enabling them to continue the project from last year.

Young people from the CICC set up the project, and developed an application process
whereby young people can apply for up to £150 for non-educational items, which would
not typically be funded in this way for example, sport and exercise equipment, boxing
lessons, art and craft supplies, instruments and music lessons etc. The Corporate Parent
Panel had the pleasure of meeting two young people who have benefited from this fund in
the December 2023 meeting. It was delightful to see the needlework/crafts the young
people are producing after purchasing a sewing machine through the funding they
received after a successful application was granted.

The Virtual School continue to work with the CICC to ensure young people’s voices are
heard and reflected in decisions that are made.

Post 16 young people attending further education colleges are now supported by Pupil
Premium Plus. This is lower than the Pupil Premium available for statutory school age
children and is used to provide an incentive to attend a Post 16 provision with the aim of
reducing the numbers of those Not in Education, Employment or Training (NEET). This
has supported them to access the wider college life and has encouraged good attendance.
A Mentor was employed to provide additional pastoral support.

Emotional Wellbeing

As part of our focus on emotional wellbeing and the identified need of SEMH being a
strong factor when identifying special education needs of children in our care, we have
continued to raise awareness in all schools and settings of the impact of early trauma and
insecure attachment on behaviour and learning and have supported schools to review
policies and implement change.

We have developed a strong offer to schools and settings to support the emotional
wellbeing of children and young people, including the therapeutic offer through Full Circle.
In addition to this we provide counselling for children through The Durham Counselling
Service and have access to emotional wellbeing assessments through the Emotional
Wellbeing and Effective Learning team.

County Council \§&




Education, Employment and Training

A range of support has been provided to support Care Leavers to progress into education,
employment and training (EET) during 2023- 2024.

Durham

To jmprove your future
T /

DurhamWorks Programme for Schools

Young people received support through the DurhamWorks Programme for Schools, which
helped them to progress into sustained post-16 EET. They accessed individual careers
guidance, participated in group based activities on themes such as transition support,
motivation, and work related learning, and received one-to-one mentoring support.
Attendance at PEP reviews was also a key feature to ensure there was a partnership
approach to transition support.

Workplaces Project

The Workplaces Project provided opportunities for identified young people in Years 10 and
12, including children who are looked after, to gain a valuable insight into the world of work
and find out about the skills and aptitudes that employers value through bespoke visits to
employer premises. Young people learned about specific employment sectors, different
job roles within those, as well as recruitment processes. They also spent time with
employees to find out about their pathways into work, in order to show them that
employment is an achievable goal.

DurhamWorks

Care Leavers were supported by DurhamWorks post-16 re-engagement programmes to
enable them to progress into and remain in EET. Those engaged with DurhamWorks
received transition support, the opportunity to obtain English and maths qualifications,
access to a range of learning provision and activities to support their progression into
education, employment or training. There is a focus on securing employment outcomes for
young people within a defined timeframe. Therefore, employer engagement activity was a
key feature of the programme, including a DurhamWorks Grant that was available to SME
businesses to support the employment of young people. Overall, 332 children who are
looked after or care leavers were supported by DurhamWorks Programme for Schools and
DurhamWorks re-engagement programmes, of which 193 progressed into EET.

Sessional Employment Programme

A Sessional Employment Programme continued to offer care leavers the opportunity of
paid work experience within Durham County Council. Work placements were identified
which met their talents, interests, and aspirations. A Sessional Employment Co-ordinator
collaborated with Young People’s Advisors from Children’s Social Care Service,
colleagues from Human Resources, as well as Durham County Council Service Managers
to deliver the programme. Since commencement in October 2021, 26 care leavers have
accessed paid work experience placements.

Care Leavers can be in EET, or NEET to access sessional employment and work
placements are paid at the rate of the Durham Living Wage. Examples of placements
include Durham County Council’s HR Department, farming in protected landscapes, the
Gala Theatre, Durham County Council’'s Children and Young People’s Services, Peterlee
Pavilion, Meadowfield Depot and Leisure Centres.

Durhann

County Council \&




Durham County Council Apprenticeships

Further activities were undertaken during 2023-2024 to enhance the measures in place to
support Care Leavers to progress into apprenticeships. This included liaising with Durham
County Council HR staff to identify more ringfenced apprenticeship posts, as well as
preparing Care Leavers to apply for apprenticeship vacancies through individual tailored
support from DurhamWorks. There are currently 7 Care Leavers who are undertaking an
apprenticeship with Durham County Council. DurhamWorks also supports Care Leavers to
progress into apprenticeships within the private sector. There are currently 6 Care Leavers
who are in apprenticeships, employed by a variety of businesses / organisations.

Pupil Premium Plus Post-16 Programme

Durham County Council continued to deliver the Government’s Pupil Premium Plus Post-
16 Programme. Funding has been used to appoint a dedicated adviser whose role is to
support Care Leavers who are enrolled in further education, as well as provide a 'Keep In
College’ weekly cash incentive of £20 to Care Leavers with over 80% authorised
attendance. During the current 2023-2024 academic year, 149 Care Leavers are being
supported by the scheme, following the decision to expand it to include Care Leavers
attending sixth form colleges and other education and training providers.

Higher Education

A Young People’s Advisor from the Children’s Social Care Service supported 32 Care
Leavers studying at a range of Higher Education institutions across the United Kingdom.
Examples of courses being studied include Social Work, Nursing, Law, English Literature,
Animal Physiotherapy and Radiography. Meetings took place with Care Leavers at their
university every 12 weeks. Contact was also made with Care Leaver teams and wellbeing
teams at their university. Support was provided to help Care Leavers apply for student
finance, secure suitable accommodation, including requests for ‘staying put’ arrangements
during holiday periods, as well as support with next steps, for those entering their final year
at university.

Positive links were established with the five universities that are located in the North East.
All signed up to a Care Leaver Covenant through NERAP (North East Raising Aspirations
Partnership), which ensures that Care Leavers studying at any of these universities can
access the same level of help and support. NERAP also offers training and support about
higher education to Children Looked After/Care Leavers and Foster Carers. This includes
a Choices Together programme for those aged 11 to 18.

Unaccompanied Asylum Seeking Children

DurhamWorks worked very closely with colleagues in the Children’s Social Care Service to
provide support to UASC. During 2023-2024, dedicated provision was procured through
DurhamWorks to support the progression of UASC into further learning opportunities. This
was delivered by organisations within the VCS sector. 16 young people completed the
course with 15 progressing into further learning.

Information about DurhamWorks is available on the DurhamWorks website



https://durhamworks.info/

Avycliffe Secure Centre

Mission statement: “Through developing and investing in our staff and infrastructure,
Aycliffe Secure Centre will continue to provide each young person with a safe,
secure, caring home and school. Encouraging and motivating each young person
to be the best they can be in an environment they can enjoy.”

Aycliffe Secure Centre is registered to care and educate up to 34 vulnerable and complex
young people. The centre has a contract with the Youth Custody Service to care for 8
young people following being remanded or sentenced. The other young people are
accommodated for their own or others’ safety under Section 25 of the Children Act 1989
and are commissioned by local authorities. The centre also cares for young people placed
under the Concordat, which prevents the detention of children in police stations following
charge. There continues to be an increasing demand for placements under PACE
especially during weekends.

Aycliffe Centre has five houses (Auckland, Barnard, Durham, Lumley and Walworth),
which are made to feel as homely as possible within the parameters of a secure setting.
Young people are able to personalise their bedrooms and have a say in the decoration
and furnishing within the home. Individual young people are matched to move into one of
these houses using the information provided to ensure the “best fit.” There is always an all-
female and an all-male house and the other three are dependent on need. The centre
now has its own transition home, Maple House registered under community homes
regulations.

The onsite school is well equipped with both vocational and academic classrooms, offering
a broad curriculum. The facilities in school are set over two floors in which more practical
lessons are undertaken on the ground floor, including Science, Technology, Engineering
and Maths (STEM), Motor Vehicle studies, Health and Beauty, Art and Design, Catering
and Music. On the upper floor there is ICT, Health and Social Care, PHSE, Maths, English
as well as a newly refurbished Library and exam room.




The young people are educated in their house group but engage in differentiated learning.
Some young people have be-spoke one to one education plans in school and on the
houses until they are able to work within a group setting.

There are extensive indoor and outdoor leisure areas in the centre for the young people.
This includes play courts, gardens, Astro court, horticulture, and park areas, running track
as well as indoor sports hall, exercise gym and swimming pool.

The model of care and culture within the centre is that of “Exceptional Parenting.” This is
underpinned by Trauma Informed Care. Aycliffe centre has fully embraced the “Framework
of Integrated Care for Children and Young People living in secure environment, SECURE
STAIRS.” Staff training supports building resilience and psychologically informed staff so
that they are supported in caring for our vulnerable and complex young people. We have
had our third post pilot annual review and have contributed to the template document
format, alongside delivering to the national SECURE STAIRS events and Cluster
meetings.

Inspection and monitoring at Aycliffe Secure Centre 2023-2024

As a secure children’s home, we have two unannounced inspections every year, with the
most recent full unannounced Inspection in July 2023 that was judged as Good Overall
with Outstanding in Health.

Some extracts from the report read as follows:

Children have positive relationships with staff, receive good-quality care, and enjoy a range
of activities and interests. They experience good-quality education and very high-quality
healthcare. This underpins children’s development and the good progress that they make.

Staff encourage children to participate in developing their care plans and meetings about
their care. This helps them to feel valued, empowered and influential in the care and
support they receive.

Children receive sensitive care from staff when they arrive at the home. Staff across all
professional disciplines understand children’s needs and provide them with individualised
care and support.

In November 2023, Aycliffe had its Assurance Inspection, and it was acknowledged that all
recommendations and requirements from the previous inspection were fully implemented
and there were no causes for concern.

County Council \&




Maple House, our transition home for young people who have lived in our centre was
registered by Ofsted and opened in June 2023. We have had 5 young people live in the
home so far, and we are yet to be inspected by Ofsted.

The 2023 summer term ended on a high, with Aycliffe’s second Festival of Speed. This
year’s event was even bigger and better than the previous one! All Houses again took part,
but as some of the young people had been here last year, they had learned from that
experience and refined their carts to make them more lightweight and aerodynamic so that
some fantastic speeds were achieved. The weather could have dampened the day, but
spirits remained high and young people and staff were able to enjoy street food and stalls,
as well as a bouncy assault course. The highlight of the day was the performance by our
live band, who this year were joined on drums by one of our young people. Having
practiced daily for weeks, it was an epic performance, and we were absolutely thrilled to
see young people and staff performing together. Plans are being discussed for 2024!

Throughout September 2023, Aycliffe young people took part in the SAN Olympics; the
first ever national sporting competition to be held between Secure Children’s Homes.
Events included distance runs, as well as sprints and a range of athletic events. Times and
results were recorded and submitted to the SAN national secretary with medals and
trophies awarded to the winners. Aycliffe achieved the highest number of medals overall,
with six gold, five silver, and nine bronze medals. Go Aycliffe!!l!

Parent/carer and professionals’ days have continued to be successful. Feedback has been
very positive, and adults have reported that they have loved being able to see children’s
progress and the high standard of work they are producing. In November 2023, the young
people on Walworth House trained to undertake the huge challenge of running 13.2 miles
(a half marathon) for a Cancer charity. Family and friends were invited along to enjoy the
event. It was a huge success and the centre raised over £800 for charity.

Alongside continual redecoration of the centre, two of the homes have been redecorated
and refurbished including new carpets and furniture, which included the young people’s
ideas and choices. The hair and beauty salon has been fully refurbished and is really
appreciated by all. Many of our young people have achieved certification and qualifications
over this last year, some taking exams for the first time. We are proud to report that some
of young people have received Koestler awards showing national recognition of the
creativity and talent.

Durhan: (>

County Council \§&




Key Performance Data 2023-24

e There were 1213 children in care at the end of March 2024. This is higher than last
year and our rate of children in care per 10,000 children in County Durham is now
more in line with the North East and our Statistical Neighbours.

e The National Transfer Scheme for Unaccompanied Asylum Seeking Children
started 2 years ago, there are 78 UASC being looked after by Durham County
Council

e 49 children were adopted in 2023/24. This equates to 12% of all children leaving
care which is higher than England and in line with the North East and our Statistical
Neighbours in 2022/23.

e A slightly higher proportion of children in our care in Durham are in a foster
placement than our comparators (72% compared to 68% in England and 68% in our
statistical neighbours in 2022/23).

e Around 30% of our children in our care are placed outside of County Durham, but
the majority are within neighbouring local authority areas. This is often closer to
their home than if placed in other areas of the county. This continues to be
consistently lower than our comparators.

e We continue to experience significant placement pressures which has led to an
increase in children having 3 or more placement moves and long-term stability for
some of our children aged under 16 who have been in care for more than 2.5 years.

e We have seen an increase in the number of children in our care reported as missing
alongside the number of missing episodes, with some children regularly reported as
‘missing’. Multi-agency work is ongoing with Police and other partner agencies to
monitor, understand and address this.

e Performance in relation to our care leavers remains positive in relation to
accommodation suitability. Education, employment and training has reduced to
below 2022/23 benchmarks for 17-18 year olds and in line with 2022/23
benchmarks for 19-21 year olds.

e Educational attainment data is included in Virtual School and Employment,
Education and Training sections.

County Council \&




Achievements

IIC Membership Award
The membership award gives organisations national recognition for the good practice and
active inclusion of children and young people in dialogue that results in change.

Between April 2023 and January 2024, 15 Durham County Council Services received an
IIC Membership Award, which recognises and celebrates examples of imaginative and
inclusive practice across Children’s Services.

Peer mentoring

Young people continue to undertake the training to become peer mentors. IIC and the
CICC are working with DCC staff to ensure that the young people taking part in the
programme have the support that they need to make sure they feel safe and know what to
do with any information that is shared or disclosed during these sessions.

Language

We continue to have regular discussions about the language we use, and as a result of
this some changes have been made based on young people’s suggestions. The
‘language that cares’ document is also being updated to reflect care experienced young
people’s language presences.

To help embed how we practice in Durham, and to remind staff of the things we ‘must do’
new lock screens appear on laptops automatically each month. One of the lock screens
was about language:

Things we [FES _
aMust D" TR LS Bt

@D We will use kind and clear
language in all that we do.

16:27

Thursday 14 December

Art and wellbeing café

Additional funding was secured after winning the High Sheriff award, which will continue to
benefit several care experienced young people who connect with the café through the
CICcC.

Thermal Aid 2023

The care leaver’s service supported an liC volunteer to lead a project called Thermal Aid
2023, to secure funding for 20 bespoke packs aimed at reducing energy costs for care
leavers.




Full Circle
Young people from the CICC met with leads from The Full Circle to consider how the new
building can be made more child friendly with young people’s artwork on display.

Know-What-When Guide
Young people did some lifemap work to help others understand what to expect at each

stage of their care journey.
.= LG

|

-
@ Guide

Your guide
to the first

few weeks
in care.

=

Education Fun Fund

Work has continued with [IC / CICC managing this fund from the Virtual School, allowing
young people to request money for help towards buying things that would benefit them,
what are not necessarily classed as ‘education’ and covered by PPE money, for example a
musical instrument, sports equipment or craft / sewing materials. At December 2023, 156
applications had been received, 93 of which were from care experienced young people.

“I have enjoyed choosing quality football gear and | can’t wait to use them. It makes me
feel like | just want to get out onto the pitch and | am excited for what the season brings. |
was able to get my new football boots customised with my nickname on. | will let you know
how the season is going in a few months and | know this will help me with my learning.
Thank you”

“Thank you for the trampoline for J it’s great. It has enabled him to get out of the house as
I don't have a garden, just a yard and it will help his confidence, it is very much
appreciated thank you again”

One young person even requested money to buy gifts for young people who he knew
would otherwise receive nothing for Christmas.

Recruitment

Young people from the CICC continue to be part of the recruitment, selection and training
process for positions within children’s social care.

One young people said: “/ can’t believe | have done this, it’s such a big achievement”.




Foster Care training

CICC members run training sessions for people who are considering becoming foster
carers. Feedback from the sessions is very positive:

‘Loved hearing their opinions on how I could be a good foster carer’.

‘The young people here, have achieved so much for other children in care’.

Supply pack funding

Funding of £7,600 was sought from the CPP elected members for an Entry into Care Pack
project, however when the contributions from their budgets was collated the project had
received approx. £18,500. It was agreed that any surplus for the project would be used to
provide Exit from Care Packs for those exiting care.

Association of the Directors of Children’s Services (ADCS)

John Pearce, Durham County Councils Corporate Director of Children and Young People’s
Services is President of ADCS this year, and invited young people from Durham to attend
an ADCS conference in Manchester. Young people from the CICC worked alongside 1IC
and DCC service leads to develop a film and presentation for the conference, which were
very well received. Service leads spoke of how caring, respectful and helpful the young
people were and how heart-warming it was to see the more experienced members of the
group encouraging the younger members to engage and contribute. Everyone praised the
young people for being such excellent ambassadors for Durham.

Street Law project

CICC members continue to work on the Street Law project, an initiative which involves
students from Newcastle University Law School volunteering to deliver free sessions to
children and young adults aged 6 — 17 to raise awareness of issues relating to the legal
system, children’s rights and the law. They have worked on an animation so that people of
different ages have a better understanding of the range of different care orders.

Newcastle
University

Durhan: §f

County Council &8




Poetry book

A collection of young people’s poetry has been collated into a ‘Cherished’ Poetry Book.
This was a proposal from CPP members to bring young people’s work together to
showcase in one collection. Funding was allocated from Children’s Social Care and the
Virtual School and in partnership with a local poet, service leads ran three poetry
workshops for children aged seven years and over. The book will be distributed to all
Local Authority schools plus out of county schools where our young people go. It will we
shared with Children’s Social Care Teams, all libraries across County Durham and a copy
of the book will be given to the Locomotion at Shildon, and Beamish Museum for their
‘Cottage.’

Freedom Card

The Freedom Card is a leisure and activity pass issued to children and young people who
are in our care (including their foster families) enabling them free access to swimming,
leisure centres and various other activities to promote a healthy lifestyle.

The Freedom Card is funded by Durham County Council and Investing in Children are
commissioned to manage and review the project, and engage with children and young
people to ensure that it continued to provide young people and their families want. You
can find out more about freedom cards here: https://www.durhamcicc.co.uk/freedom-card

Good Luck Cards

In 2023, the Corporate Parenting Panel acknowledged how difficult exam times can be for
young people, and agreed that moving forward ‘good luck’ cards would be sent to all
young people in our care who are facing their exams. The message in the cards reads:

‘Good luck in your exams. Be proud of what you can achieve.
We are proud of you. Best wishes from Durham Corporate Parents’

County Council \&



https://www.durhamcicc.co.uk/freedom-card

Proud moments

In response to young people telling us that they sometimes faced stigma and
discrimination, agreement was made by the Corporate Parenting Panel that proud
moments would be shared at each meeting to highlight young people’s achievements and
successes - no matter how big or small. Some of our proud moments include:

e Billie Leigh and Luke attended full Council meeting on 19 July 2023 to present the
2022-23 Corporate Parenting panel Annual Report. Billie Leigh read her
‘megaphone’ poem and received a standing ovation:

Megaphone

When | used to speak, it was hard to be heard. My voice would get lost like a
flightless bird

It started with a whisper, a tiny sound. A seed that is planted in fertile ground
You nurtured it with love and care, and soon enough it began to flare

But when | found my megaphone, my voice took flight. Soaring above the noise,
clear and bright

With each word | feel more alive, my voice became strong, finally | can thrive
My voice grew stronger in each passing day, and sure, enough it is here to stay
| can now speak my truth with confidence and pride. My voice is my power, my
beacon, my guide

Now | have found my voice | will never let it go, it is part of me, like a river is to its
flow

| feel heard, and that’s an important thing, it’s like my soul has sprouted wings
But sometimes not everyone finds their voice, to speak their truth and make a
choice

But when we help others make a sound, their voice will echo all around

It starts by listening with an open ear, to understand what they hold dear

Their passions, their dreams, their fears, and what they want to share with their
peers

We can hold their megaphone, so their message is loud and known

We can amplify their voice with care, so everyone around can stop and stare
When we help others find their voice, we give them wings now they can rejoice
Their message can take flight and soar, and they can be heard forevermore.

Durhani ‘%

County Council \&




One young person was instrumental on leading the discussions at a CICC meeting,
which centred around budgets and savings. These became one of the priority
areas of focus for the CICC / CPP.

A young person secured a part-time hospitality job with Newcastle United football
club, which fit perfect around their university studies.

A young person was selected as a representative on the Children’s Commissioner’s
Care Experienced Advisory Board. As part of this role, Luke took part in a podcast
in which he gave a candid interview about being a care leaver and he shared his
thoughts on initiatives to support and nurture young people.

The full interview is available on the Children’s Commissioner’s website, and it
illustrates why Luke is such an excellent ambassador for Durham. We are
extremely proud that Luke is engaged in the national agenda.

The IMO Podcast: open and honest conversations with care leavers - IMO
(childrenscommissioner.gov.uk)

The CPP were made aware of a military application statement from a young person
who had experience with the care system in County Durham and had applied to join
the Armed Forces. The young person was not successful in their application but
were not deterred and noted the excellent journey that they had taken, having come
from a background with neglect and many challenges.

One young person who had been absent from education, had improved attendance
since moving into the care of secure services. He has been developing his art skills
and producing excellent work and he is proud that staff are pleased with the
progress he has made.

A young person who had previously had several missing from home incidents was
settling back into her home with the support from staff, and had returned to enjoying
her hobbies.

A young person who struggled with self-esteem has been working with staff to
improve her confidence and as a result, she is making plans to attend her school
prom, wearing a bright red dress and being proud of the person she is.

County Council \&



https://www.childrenscommissioner.gov.uk/imo/podcast/
https://www.childrenscommissioner.gov.uk/imo/podcast/

Staff were extremely proud of a young person who moved on from her children’s
home into a ‘staying close’ tenancy. Staff are pleased at how well the young person
is coping with the transition and how much she is looking forward to this new
chapter of her life, knowing that she will have support of staff who are familiar to
her, having cared for her for a number of years.

A young person who, during his time in care, was very well informed about
entitlements and was tenacious in his pursuit to have his views heard and acted
upon. His Young Person’s Adviser reassured the young person to have patience
and trust in the processes. On leaving care, the young person sent a heartfelt ‘thank
you’ card to the Young Person’s Adviser and Team Manager thanking them for the
steadfast dedication and faith they had placed in him through challenging times.

The Head of the Virtual School spoke of the achievements of the young people who
sat GCSE exams over summer. One young person in particular, made a great deal
of progress despite having to contend with placement changes in the months prior
to his exams. Not only did he continue to attend school, he also volunteered with
the school’s recycling programme and committed himself to extra tuition and after-
school revision sessions and activities. This resulted in him achieving higher grades
than expected and he is currently studying at college, on the course that he had set
his sights on.

Young people brought a mobile ‘Positivitree’ to a CPP meeting. The branches of
the tree contained positive messages from care experienced young people. The
‘Positivitree’ initiative symbolises the commitment to help care experienced young
people grow and thrive and the tree was taken to regional events to showcase the
young people’s achievements. Members of the CPP also added their own pledges
to the branches.




The Chair and Vice-Chair of the CPP have established a regional Corporate
Parenting Chairs’ and Vice-Chairs’ network, to share good practice between local
authorities in the north east. A regional conference is being arranged for May 2024,
with young people from the regional CiCC attending to present. A number of these
young people are from Durham’s CiCC.

Ofsted inspectors met with a group of young people as part of the recent inspection
and a particularly proud moment came for the staff when the inspectors asked the
young people whether they had heard of, or, were involved in, the Corporate
Parenting Panel. The positivity and enthusiasm displayed by the young people
when talking about the CPP was overwhelming for the staff to hear.

and reflect on findings from the Ofsted visit.

Billie Leigh is joining the CYPS Engagement and Participation Team as a sessional
Junior Project Support Worker, and they are excited to welcome her to the role
which will see her participating in a range of engagement work.

Care Leavers have been allocated £10,000 from DCC’s Chief Executive to improve
services for care leavers. They have set up a ‘next venture fund’ project plan, and
have appointed a treasurer, secretary and an independent scrutineer and are
looking at governance, budgeting and criteria for allocation on monies.

NEXT
VENTURE
FUND

Durham/

County Council \&



Contact details

Countydurhampartnership@durham.gov.uk

Durhan:

County Council



mailto:Countydurhampartnership@durham.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 13

Corporate Parenting Panel

21 June 2024 Durham|

County Council sg,gl

Adopt Coast to Coast

Report of Paula Gibbons, Head of Service, Adopt Coast to Coast

Electoral division(s) affected:
Countywide

Purpose of the Report

1 To provide an update on the 3" year of the Regional Adoption Agency,
in respect of the activity for the Durham spoke.

Executive summary

2 Adopt Coast to Coast has started to re-establish its branding across the
North East following a recruitment gap for the communications and
marketing officer post.

3 Adopt Coast to Coast is a partnership RAA for Durham County Council
and Together for Children who deliver children's services on behalf of
Sunderland City Council.

Recommendation

4 Members of the Corporate Parenting Panel are asked to receive the
presentation and marketing activity update, for the 3rd year of operation
from 1 April 2023 to 31 March 2024.

Background

5 In this reporting year we have had some periods of time where we have
been less visible which has in turn affected enquiry numbers. Marketing
activity was reduced due to a vacancy within the role of marketing and
communications officer between 1 March and 12 June 2023. This was
further delayed while the new post holder settled into the role.
Advertising recommenced in September 2023. The impact of this was a
significant decrease in the number of enquiries during this period and
the following months.

6 The cost-of-living crisis has had an understandable detrimental effect on
incoming enquiries. We are aware this is also the experience of most
other RAAs and VAAs across England.

Page 133



Learning from marketing activity

7 Note the learning from marketing activity carried out to date:

. Google ads are essential to maintaining incoming enquiries and remain
our biggest recruitment tool

o Real stories resonate with people

. Videos are engaged with the most

o Profiles of real children increases engagement

o Social media and digital activity support awareness raising

o Sponsored content with local publications is successful

o Targeted campaigns e.g. brother and sister groups adoption throughout
the year works well

o Adopter ‘type’ specific recruitment activity is well received e.g. LGBTQ+
and single parent adopters

Performance

8 The enquiry numbers across the RAA have decreased by 66, and
majority of these (63) were from the Durham spoke. The percentage of
the enquiries referred to Durham reduced by 10% to 51%.

9 Across the RAA, the approval numbers decreased by 31, the majority of
these in the Durham spoke where approvals decreased by 26 to 15
prospective adoptive families. The conversion rate from enquiry to
approval has also decreased from 23% (in the previous year) to 13% for
the Durham Spoke.

10 The RAA had 33 prospective adopters in stage 1 and 2 at 1 April 2024,

Durham has a 52% share of these.

Main implications

Marketing activity objectives for 2024/25 are:

11
12

13

Page 134

To return enquiry numbers in line with 2022/23 enquiries

To recruit a pool of suitable prospective adopters from within and
beyond our geographical footprint who are able to adopt our children.
Prospective adopters who have a range of skills and experiences to
provide the loving homes needed amongst the children cared for across
both spokes, for whom securing permanency via adoption is the
preferred outcome.

Recruitment will balance the continued need for prospective adopters
seeking to adopt a younger single child against child specific
recruitment and key campaigns for children with the following



characteristics which are more likely to result in them waiting longer to
be matched and subsequently adopted:

o Single children aged five years and over

o Brother and sister groups of two or more children

o Children who have developmental uncertainty due to either possible
genetic or environmental factors

o Children who have identified health/medical conditions and/or
developmental delay and who are likely to need a significant level of
ongoing health/medical care or learning support

o Children whose background histories include having a parent(s)
diagnosed as having significant mental health difficulties and/or a
personality disorder

o Children who are at a higher risk of having complex needs relating to
their experiences in utero and in the birth family

o Children with a plan for Early Permanence

14  Continue to build brand recognition and awareness through activities in
areas both inside and outside of our geographical footprint via suitable
regional and local media outlets.

Conclusion

15 Members of the Corporate Parenting Panel will have an overview of the
marketing activity undertaken in this reporting period and be aware of
the next steps for Adopt Coast to Coast.

16  Members of the Corporate Parenting Panel will understand how they
are able to support the service and be advocates for adoption.

Author
Paula Gibbons Tel: 03000 265235

Page 135



Appendix 1: Implications

Legal Implications
Relevant legislation is adhered to within the spokes, in relation to adoption.

Finance
There are no financial implications.

Consultation

Adoptive families are regularly engaged with recruitment activity and support
Adopt Coast to Coast in recruiting prospective adopters.

Equality and Diversity / Public Sector Equality Duty

Adopt Coast to Coast welcomes and actively encourages enquiries from
everyone and recruitment activity supports this.

Climate Change

There are no climate change implications.

Human Rights

Securing adoptive families for children with plans of adoption approved by the
Court supports the child’s Article 8 rights - protects your right to respect for
your private and family life

Crime and Disorder
There are no crime and disorder implications.

Staffing
There are no staffing implications.

Accommodation
There are no accommodation implications.

Risk
There are no risk implications.

Procurement
There are no procurement implications.

Page 136



Appendix 2: Marketing Activity

Attached as a separate report

Page 137



This page is intentionally left blank



6ET abed

adop

Coast to Coast

Annual Report for
Adopt Coast to Coast

1°* April 2023 - 31** March 2024

Marketing Activity

During 2023/24 there was a period where our brand and presence has been less-visible which in-turn has had an impact on recruitment.
Marketing activity was reduced between 1 March and 12 June 2023 due to a vacancy within the role of marketing and communications officer.
This was further delayed while the new post holder settled into the role. Paid for advertising recommenced in September 2023. The impact of
this was a significant reduction in the number of enquiries during this period and beyond.

We also faced challenges throughout the year with the continuation of the cost-of-living crisis and the understandable detrimental effect it is
having on incoming enquiries. This picture is evident across the nation, with most RAAs and VAAs identifying similar concerns about a drop in
enquiry numbers; particularly in the North East.

Learnings from marketing activity carried out to date

e Google ads are essential to maintaining incoming enquiries and remain our biggest recruitment tool
e Real stories resonate with people

e Videos are engaged with the most

e Profiles of real children increases engagement

e Social media and digital activity support awareness raising

e Sponsored content with local publications is successful

e Targeted campaigns e.g. brother and sister groups adoption throughout the year works well

e Adopter ‘type’ specific recruitment activity is well received e.g. LGBTQ+ and single parent adopters

together for Sunderland 1
children  Gity Council

e
Durham %3
County C 5




ov'T obed

Going forward in 2024-25, our target audience groups will be:

e Members of the public aged over 21 years and living in the UK

e Members of the public who live in our region and Scottish borders/Scotland, up to and including Edinburgh.
e LGBTQ+ community

o Affluent postcode areas

Key messages for 2024-25 will be aligned to the following:

General recruitment

e We are here to support you to take the first step

e Thereisn’t a set list of credentials for prospective adopters

e We are the RAA for Durham County Council and Together for Children (Sunderland)
e Adopt Coast to Coast offers early permanence and mainstream adoption

e We work within Government timeframes

We are the experts on adoption

e We have well established adoption services
e Adopt Coast to Coast is involved in regional and national activity
e We are innovative and always looking to improve

Children and families

e We find families for children who wait the longest

e Decisions are made at the best interest of children

e We support prospective adopters from enquiry, to approval, match and once a new family is formed
e Post-adoption support is tailored to family needs

together for S
: underland
children  Gity Council




THT abed

Adopt Coast to Coast and spokes’ performance

Adopt Coast to Coast Durham Together for Children
Enquiries 227 115-*51% 112 - *49%
2023/24
(2022/23) 293%* 178 - *61% 115-*39%
(2021/22) 372%* 216 -*58% 156 -*42%
Approvals 37 15-*41% 22 - *59%
2023/24
(2022/23) 68%** 41 - *60% 27 - *40%
(2021/22) 67** 40 -*60% 27 -*40%
Matches 70 40 - *57% 30 - *43%
2023/24
(2022/23) 91** 58 - *64% 33-*36%
(2021/22) 94 ** 65 -*69% 29-*31%
In year conversion from 16% 13% 20%
number of enquiries to
approval
2023/24
(2022/23) 23% 23% 23%
(2021/22) 18% 19% 17%

*percentage of RAA performance

**minus Cumbrian figures

together for

nas
Durham{%
County Counci it g

i Sunderland
c‘h"l dr =0 City Council




Z¥T abed

Maps of enquiries received

Durham

together for

in

Isle of Man

. combrage
(S




cpT abed

TfC

together for
children

SUNDERLAND

Mill
Ridin Mill

underland
City Council

nnﬂeld Plaln Chester—le~8t :

Lancl%s,t'a

NOR
> D{B@&UD




1T abed

Cumbria

It was agreed that any online enquiries received between 1%t April and the 30™ June 2023 would still automatically go to Cumbria Adoption to
give them a period of grace in developing their online presence on behalf of Cumberland and Westmorland and Furniss.

~ OnceBrewed
] Haltwhistl o

Solway, J’

Coast/AONB

* Lake Distric
National Park:

together for



ST abed

Spokes position at 315t March

progress

Approved adopters
without a link/match in

*waited over 6 months
from approval

Stage 1

Prospective Adopters in

Prospective Adopter in
Stage 2 pending

Stage 2

Prospective Adopters in

together for
children

SUNDERLAND

Sunderland

City Council

Durham

31/3/2023

11/3*

Together for Children

31/3/2023




9T abed

Spokes Adoption Performance

Children’s Journey

Durham Together for Children

31/3/2023 31/3/2023

Children with ADM/SHOPA but
no Placement Order

Children with Placement
Order/number without a
link/match

Children who have had a
Placement Order for over 6
months

Children in EP placements
(Fostering for Adoption/

Concurrency) from 1" April -
cumulative throughout the
year.

Children matched since April

Children placed outside RAA

with interagency fees from 1"
April -cumulative throughout

the year.

together for
@ i BEeS



LT abed

Adoption Support

In recognising the national increase in adoption support, the monthly data collection was extended in November to include adoption support referrals,
assessments of support needs and adoption support cases. As the table below shows, Durham is on an increasing trajectory across all 3 areas of
practice; to understand this trend, the management team are planning a review of all support cases to ensure that it is appropriate for them to remain
open.

For Together for Children, except for a slight increase in adoption support requests in Feb 2024, all other areas of practice across the period of
recording shows a decrease in activity. An annual review of all open support cases is already embedded in TfC and their learning from these has been
utilised in developing their support offer.

Spoke Post Post Adoption Support Post Post Support Post Post Support
Adoption Support Assessments | cases Adoption Adoption cases Adoption | Adoption cases
Support Support Support Support | Support
Requests Requests Assessments Requests | Assessments
Nov | Dec | Nov Dec Nov | Dec |lJan | Feb |lJan Feb | Jan Feb March March March
2023 2024
Durham 5 5 Not Not 124 | 132 |4 5 4 5 130 | 135 16 16 151
available | available
Difference - +8 -1 |+ +1 -2 +5 +11 +11 +16
Together 2 2 5 5 94 94 2 5 3 2 90 87 0 2 82
for
Children
Difference - - - - - - +3 -2 -1 -4 -3 - - -5

together for S
: underland
c‘h"' dr =0 City Council




81T abed

In recognising the increasing needs of adoptive families and to achieve a consistent support offer across the RAA, an adoption support strategy has
been developed. For 2024/25 there is a focus on increasing the universal offer (tier 1) with the aim of engaging with adoptive families sooner and
developing services that provide a step-down from the highest level of need. This development is timely as Adopt Coast to Coast are part of a national

development across RAAs.

Proposed Adopt Coast to Coast Adoption Support Model

MDASS (Multi-disciplinary adoption support service) is a shared service
across Adopt Coast to Coast, Adopt North East and Adoption Tees Valley; the
3 RAAs providing adoption services on behalf of the 12 North East local
authorities. Part of the funding, provided through a DfE grant, included a
seconded social worker from each RAA as the conduit to their RAA, for
Adopt Coast to Coast the successful post holder was recruited from frontline
social work in TfC as there was no capacity or interest across the adoption
social workers in either spoke. The national funding is also providing
specialist training and Adopt Coast to Coast had 7 social workers across the
spokes complete DDP level 1 in February 2024. Further specialist training
will be commissioned including DDP level 2 and Theraplay. To access the
enhanced training packages, each spoke will need to commit to supporting
these staff to utilise their skills and learning within a therapeutic
environment. The intention is to enable the spokes to draw down Adoption
Special Guardianship Support Fund (ASGSF) for therapeutic work carried out
by their staff.

=

MDASS Tier One

(Universal services)

Tier 2 prem

child groups, parties, peer
support groups, Duty response,
Birth parents support, etc)

Tierd e

and Dyadic Therapeutic
Interventions and reviews)

Tier 3 (social work

support, therapeutic groups and
«education support)

National Funding has also been secured for a pan regional concurrency planning project which includes an RAA in the West and 3 VAA partners. Each
spoke is receiving funding equivalent to a day a week for a social worker as the lead on the Project Team. A shared approach to developing all early
permanence options in our region is key to increasing the opportunities for children to live with a family who can become their forever family should

the Court approve a plan of adoption.

together for Sunderland
children ity Counecil

10



67T abed

TfC have seen a 150% increase from 4 children in 2022/23 to 10 in 2023/24, Durham have also had an increase in the same periods from 3to 7, a
133% increase. In terms of children matched who were previously living with EP carers, TfC achieved 33% in 2023/24 and Durham was 17.5%, both
are significant increases from the previous year of 12% and 5% respectively. Though these are positive developments, the pan regional project
continues to manage the sufficiency challenges as requests for an EP carer increase but availability across all the partners is not meeting this demand.

Matching grant — national funding has enabled up to explore child specific recruitment with a VAA partner. 3 children have been featured and in
2024/25, 1 or 2 children from TfC will also be featured. The learning from this project will be utilised locally and nationally to offer other matching
options for children who wait the longest to be matched. The outcomes of this project will be evaluated along with the other funded matching
projects through the academic partner the Institute of Public Care Oxford Brookes University.

Marketing activity objectives for 2024/25 are:

e To return enquiry numbers in line with 2022/23 enquiries

e To recruit a pool of suitable prospective adopters from within and beyond our geographical footprint who are able to adopt our children.

Prospective adopters who have a range of skills and experiences to provide the loving homes needed amongst the children cared for across both

spokes, for whom securing permanency via adoption is the preferred outcome.

e Recruitment will balance the continued need for prospective adopters seeking to adopt a younger single child against child specific recruitment and

key campaigns for children with the following characteristics which are more likely to result in them waiting longer to be matched and

subsequently adopted:

@)

@)
O
O

O
@)

Single children aged five years and over.

Brother and sister groups of two or more children.

Children who have developmental uncertainty due to either possible genetic or environmental factors.

Children who have identified health/medical problems and/or developmental delay and who are likely to need a significant level of ongoing
health/medical care or learning support.

Children whose background histories include having a parent(s) diagnosed as having significant mental health difficulties and/or a
personality disorder

Children who are at a higher risk of having complex needs relating to their experiences in utero and in the birth family.

Children with a plan for Early Permanence.

e Continue to build brand recognition and awareness through activities in areas both inside and outside of our geographical footprint via suitable

regional and local media outlets.

nas
Durham{%
County Counci it g

together for S
: underland
children &ty Council

11



0ST obed

Practice Priorities for 2024/25

- Developing and delivering consistent training for family and friends across the RAA

- Agree and implement practice change to update an assessment of support needs prior to the Adoption Order being granted or a year after
child/ren are placed (whichever is soonest)

- Develop engagement opportunities for children and young people as we work towards a comprehensive voice and influence offer

- Develop an adopter reference group

- Increase the universal adoption support offer and extend this to adopters living in our area who adopted from another agency.

- The practice and cohesion of the staff working across the RAA will be kept under review within the strategic and service managers meetings.
Adopt Coast to Coast will continue to work closely with the neighbouring RAAs through sharing best practice and supporting the development
and delivery of adoption services across our region beyond the shared regional developments.

Paula Gibbons
Head of Service - Adopt Coast to Coast

together for S
: underland
children  Gity Council

12



Adopt Coast to Coast
Annual Report

April 2023 — March 2024
Paula Gibbons
Head of Service, Adopt Coast to Coast




abed

A

dopt Coast to Coast

Performance
2023-24

Adopt Coast to Coast

Enquiries
2023/24 227
2022/23 293
2021/22 372
Approvals
2023/24 37
2022/23 68
2021/22 67
Matches
2023/24 70
2022/23 91
2021/22 94
In year conversion from number of enquiries to
approval
16%
2023/24 °
19%
2022/23 °
14%

2021/22




€GT abed

Durham County Council’s Adoption Performance

* In process at 31/03

** completed stage 1 and taking a break before entering stage 1

2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 Analysis

Enquiries | 141 216 178 115 The period where recruitment was not as active,
coincided with a continued lack of confidence

Stage 1 *13 *17/**11 *14/*%) 12%* due to the cost-of-living crisis, which is believed
to have negatively impacted on the number of
enquiries.

Stage2 | *9 *8 *6 5 ?
The conversion rate from enquiry to approval in
2023/24 was 13% a reduction of 10% on the

Approvals |41 40 41 15

previous year.

The practice around this has been monitored in
the latter part of the year and processes have
been introduced that are designed to offer
greater consistency and improvement
engagement.

<




¥GT abed

Durham County Council’s Adoption Performance —

Child’s Journey

2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 Analysis

Waiting with a 14 10 11 30 Durham has agreed plans of adoption for more

Placement Order children than in recent years. This has partly

Waited over 6 contributed to more children with a Placement Order

months with a 1 4 0 6 still waiting to be matched and more children waiting

Placement Order over 6 months. However, the reduction in the

Matched 60 65 58 40 number of enquiries and conversion to approval as
prospective adopters has also impacted. The

Interagency use 18 (30%) | 34 (52%) 17 (29%) 12 (30%)

(outside of the
RAA)

regional challenges in recruitment has also reduced
the number of available prospective adopters.




GGT 9bed

Marketing activity priorities
for 2024/25

To return enquiry numbers across the RAA in line with 2022/23 enquiries (requires an increase of 66)

To recruit a pool of suitable prospective adopters from within and beyond our geographical footprint who can adopt our
children. Prospective adopters who have a range of skills and experiences to provide the loving homes needed amongst
the children cared for across both spokes, for whom securing permanency via adoption is the preferred outcome.

Recruitment will balance the continued need for prospective adopters seeking to adopt a younger single child against
child specific recruitment and key campaigns for children with characteristics which are more likely to result in them
waiting longer to be matched and subsequently adopted, for example single children aged five years and over, larger
brother and sister groups, children who have developmental uncertainty or identified health/medical needs and/or
developmental delay, and children who are at a higher risk of having complex needs relating to their experiences in utero
and in the birth family.

Children with a plan for Early Permanence.

Continue to build brand recognition and awareness through activities in areas both inside and outside of our
geographical footprint via suitable regional and local media outlets.

County Council ‘&%



This page is intentionally left blank



, Agenda Iltem 16
By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 157



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the meeting held on 17 May 2024
	8 Care Leavers Service: My Plan, My Future - Report of Head of Children's Social Care
	Item 8 - My Plan My Future - Appendix 2
	My Plan
	 My Future
	My Goals
	My Worries
	Things that are important to me
	What else?
	How is my education/training/employment going and what are my plans
	How are things where I live and what are my plans
	Reaching my goals - am I there yet?
	What support have we agreed today to help me
	Remember



	9 Children in Care Annual Survey 2024 - Report of Head of Children's Social Care
	Item 9 - CIC Annual Survey - Appendix 2
	Item 9 - CIC Annual Survey - Presentation
	Slide 1: Care Leavers Annual Survey    Feedback from our Children in Care Annual survey  21st June  (Carried out between 26th February and 30th April 2024) 
	Slide 2
	Slide 3
	Slide 4
	Slide 5


	10 Care Leavers Service Custody Project - Report of Head of Children's Social Care
	Item 10 - CLS Custody Project - Presentation
	Slide 1: Care Leavers Service
	Slide 2: Background 
	Slide 3: What did we do? 
	Slide 4
	Slide 5


	11 Performance Report - Report of Corporate Equality and Strategy Manager
	Item 11 - Performance - Scorecard
	Item 11 - Performance - Presentation
	Slide 1: Children in our Care
	Slide 2: Children in Care: 1,225
	Slide 3
	Slide 4
	Slide 5: Missing Children
	Slide 6
	Slide 7
	Slide 8


	12 Corporate Parenting Panel Annual Report 2023-24 - Joint Report of Head of Children's Social Care and Head of Early Help, Inclusion and Vulnerable Children
	Item 12 - CPP Annual Report - Appendix 2

	13 Adopt Coast to Coast - Report of Head of Service, Adopt Coast to Coast
	Item 13 - Adopt Coast to Coast - Appendix 2
	Item 13 - Adopt Coast to Coast - Presentation
	Slide 1: Adopt Coast to Coast  Annual Report
	Slide 2
	Slide 3
	Slide 4
	Slide 5:  Marketing activity priorities  for 2024/25 


	16 Regulation 44 Visits, Durham County Council Homes - Presentation of Strategic Manager

	name: 
	completedwith: 
	datedd/mm/yyyy: 
	0: Off
	1: Off
	2: Off
	3: Off
	4: Off
	5: Off
	6: Off
	7: Off
	8: Off
	9: Off
	10: Off
	whatsupporthaveweagreedtodaytohelpme: 
	whatdoienjoydoing?isthereanythingelseIcooulddo? 2: 
	goingwell9: Off
	notgoingwellatall9: Off
	gettingthere9: Off
	howismyphysicalandmentalhealth?doineedanysupport? 2: 
	goingwell10: Off
	gettingthere10: Off
	notgoingwellatall10: Off
	mygoals: 
	myworries: 
	myfamily: Off
	whereilive: Off
	mypets: Off
	myfriends: Off
	educationtraining: Off
	employment: Off
	whatelse: 
	howismyeducationtrainingemploymentgoingandwhataremyplans: 
	goingwell2: Off
	gettingthere2: Off
	notgoingwellatall2: Off
	howarethingswhereiliveandwhataremyplans: 
	goingwell3: Off
	gettingthere3: Off
	notgoingwellatall3: Off
	goingwell6: Off
	gettingthere6: Off
	notgoingwellatall6: Off
	goingwell 3: Off
	gettingthere 3: Off
	notgoingwellatall 3: Off
	whatarethethhingsthatkeepmesafe? 2: 
	arethereanyworriesaboutmysafety? 2: 
	whosupportsmeandwhattheydo 2: 


